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t has been my great pleasure and privilege 
this year to open four outstanding exhibitions 
bringing academic findings, creative hangs 
and timely historical exploration to the fore, 
both impressing the critics and attracting the 
highest visitor numbers ever into our historic 

space. ‘Murillo and Justino de neve: The art of Friendship’ 
opened the year with dramatic lighting and important 
discoveries, and ‘Hockney, Printmaker’ brought it to a close 
revealing new aspects of the artist’s 
work to many of his admirers.

Back in the 1790s, our founders 
began with the belief that the great art 
collection they had assembled should 
be made available ‘for the inspection 
of the public’. Their conviction led to 
the creation of the first building ever 
to be designed expressly for the display 
of paintings to the public, and we remain as committed 
as ever to ensuring that our collection is interpreted and 
made available to as many people as possible. alongside the 
displays and exhibitions in the Gallery itself, our learning 
and community programmes have brought art to life for 
over 30,000 participants of all ages and backgrounds. i 
continue to be impressed by the limitless creativity of the 

team here at Dulwich to put art into practice, creating and 
teaching anything from drawing and painting from life to 
photography and printmaking. 

Dulwich is almost unique in the uK in being a collection 
designated as of national importance yet not receiving any 
regular revenue funding from any part of government. we 
rely entirely on the generosity of private individuals, trusts 
and foundations, corporate supporters, and our Friends, 
both in the uK and across the atlantic, who care about our 
mission and share our vision. The income we receive from 
our endowment and from ticket sales only covers 44% of 
our costs, so we have to raise more than half of our income 
every year. 

This year in particular we owe immense gratitude to 
Dame Theresa Sackler, our outgoing Trustee, who has been 
a committed patron and supporter for over fifteen years. it 
is thanks to her dedication to the Gallery that we have seen 
a refurbishment of our Sackler Centre for arts education 
–an invaluable space for hands-on practical art funded by 
the Dr Mortimer and Theresa Sackler Foundation – and a 
generous donation of £1 million from The Sackler Trust this 

year towards our learning endowment 
to ensure the continuing development 
of our education and community 
programmes for the future.

Success brings with it new 
challenges, and at the end of the year we 
determined to develop a new strategy 
for the next three years to consolidate 
on our successes and build for the 

future. we could not continue to do the work we believe in 
without the support we receive from our audiences, funders 
and trustees. i would like to thank all those who follow and 
support us; large or small, every donation helps, and we 
are very grateful. My thanks also go to my fellow Trustees, 
and to ian Dejardin and his team at the Gallery who plan, 
generate and realise our world-class programme.

I continue to be impressed 
by the limitless creativity of 
the team here at Dulwich 
to put art into practice...

i

Simon Freakley,  
chair oF truSteeS 
reflects on the year’s 
achievements and celebrates 
invaluable supporters.

chairman’s 
welcome
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raised – including £1 million 
sackler gift to the Catalyst 
learning endowment

visitors to the gallerys’ exhibitions, 
public events and community programme

participaNts, 
in education 
programmes

MeMbers of the 
Friends of Dulwich 
picture gallery

patroNs & 
MaJor doNors

record breaking 
numbers

a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 3 – 1 4

013-14 was another record-breaking year. 
160,000 visitors enjoyed visiting Dulwich 
Picture Gallery; and all four exhibitions that 
fell within the financial year, whether partially 
or completely – ‘Murillo and Justino De neve: 

The art of Friendship’, ‘a Crisis of Brilliance’, ‘an american 
in london: whistler and the Thames’ and ‘Hockney, 
Printmaker’ – were successful with both critics and public. 
Murillo, indeed, was one of the most dramatic stagings 
ever mounted at the Gallery, which saw its central line of 
galleries transformed into the nave of a Sevillian church. 
‘a Crisis of Brilliance’ was equally remarkable, examining 
a brilliant generation of young artists trained at the Slade 
School in the second decade of the twentieth century. 
Paul nash, C r nevinson, Dora Carrington, Mark Gertler, 
David Bomberg and Stanley Spencer were all affected 
by the cataclysm of the First world war, directly or 
indirectly – so this exhibition became 
a moving preamble to the centenary 
commemorations of the current year,  
at the same time proving to be the  
most popular summer show in the 
Gallery’s history. 

On the international front, 2014 
saw our hugely successful whistler 
show transfer to the addison 
Gallery of american art in andover, Mass., and then 
on to washington DC at the Sackler Freer Gallery. The 
exhibition’s focus in depth on one of whistler’s great 
subjects – the river Thames – made for a beautiful 
and fascinating spectacle, much enhanced by historic 
photographic views of the bustling river in the midst of its 
transformation from busy industrial thoroughfare to the 
more familiar tourist view.

Finally, ‘Hockney, Printmaker’ reminded everyone 
of just how creative and complex Britain’s most popular 
painter is, but did it exclusively by looking at the 60-year-
long story of his printmaking. From the early black, white 
and red etchings of his student years to the more recent 
vibrant computer printouts, Hockney has consistently 
pushed the technical barriers of the printmaker’s art. 

Meanwhile our education and learning programme 
continued to break new ground. a different kind of 
artwork was celebrated in august, with the launch, by Sir 
Stirling Moss, of the artmobile – a diminutive white van 
transformed by Humphrey Ocean ra into a masterpiece 
on wheels. This vehicle now transports art materials and 
creative opportunities to our multiple community partner 
sites across South london and beyond, enabling us greatly 
to extend the number of people who can benefit from 
the work we do. and we have continued to garner great 
critical acclaim for our valuable and innovative work with 
the elderly, particularly those suffering from dementia or 
alzheimer’s and, importantly, their carers. in many areas, 
other museums and galleries have caught up with what 
we are doing in education; but here once again we are 
pioneering and out in front. 

as ever our world-class Old Master collection remains 
central to what we do, and this year the curatorial team 
was joined by its first Curatorial Fellow, helping to maintain 
Dulwich as a place where young curators can learn their 
craft, something increasingly under pressure elsewhere. 
This will also enable us to make more of what we have, by 

increasing our ability to research the 
collection and create new displays for 
the public from it. Most notable of these 
last year was a bicentennial tribute 
to our occasionally overlooked third 
founder, Margaret Desenfans, whose 
money paid for the Gallery to be built, 
and who provided the wherewithal for 
noel Desenfans and Francis Bourgeois 

to embark on their careers as art dealers. 
nothing we do could be done without the support, 

financial and otherwise, of many individuals as well 
as trusts, foundations and corporate sponsors. i am 
immensely grateful to them all, and to the Trustees and 
staff who work so hard to make sure we continue to fulfil 
the aims of our founders and improve people’s lives by 
enabling them to experience great art.

...all four exhibitions that 
fell within the financial 
year were successful with 
both critics and public

2

ian ac dejardin, 
the Sackler 
director, looks back 
at the year’s consistently 
successful exhibition 
programme and valuable 
work beyond.

director’s introduction

7
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original 
eXhibitions

our exhibition programme approacheS art 
and artiStS from new or surprising angles. Our shows 
might introduce new artists to the UK; or rediscover artists 
once famous, now neglected; or present new perspectives 
on household names. 

The moment feels 
perfect for the second 
coming of murillo
Mark HudsoN, tHe telegrapH

You’ll leave longing for  
a second instalment  
of this gripping story
tiMe out

Ambitious, intellectually 
questioning and  
highly original
beN luke, tHe eveNiNg staNdard

murillo and juStino de neve: 
the art oF FriendShip
6 February – 19 May 2013
The Melosi Series: Rediscovering Old Masters

a criSiS oF brilliance: naSh, nevinSon, 
Spencer, gertler, carrington, bomberg
12 JuNe – 22 septeMber 2013
Modern British Series

Captivating, erudite 
and unexpected
tHe FiNaNcial tiMes

an american in london:  
whiStler and the thameS
16 october 2013 – 12 JaNuary 2014
International

hockney, printmaker
5 February – 11 May 2014
Works on Paper

a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 13 – 14 d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k
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art brought to liFe
our education and learning programme iS Second to none. Begun before most 
museums had education departments, we continue to innovate, finding new ways to make sure that 
our collection and exhibitions are really available to all.

Visual to Vocal works 
with people with 
dementia and their 
carers to interpret 
the collection 
through music.

The Creatives offers opportunities 
for young people to be involved in 
arts activities throughout the year.

The Artmobile takes  
art out to community 
centres, bringing  
artists and materials  
to greater numbers.

Our public 
programmes offer 

a range of practical 
and theoretical art 

to all ages.

Our schools programme works with 
children of all ages to bring our 
collection to life and put art into 
practice through personal teaching.

a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 13 – 14 d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k
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international reach
our permanent collection iS world-claSS, and key works are 
frequently in demand for exhibitions overseas. We often work with partners 
to develop our exhibitions, which are then shown internationally as well  
as in Dulwich. These are some examples of Dulwich abroad in 2013/14

‘An American in London: Whistler and the 
Thames’ tours to the Addison gallery of 
American Art, Andover, massachusetts  
(1 February – 13 April 2014) and the Freer  
gallery of Art and the Arthur m. sackler  
gallery, The smithsonian’s museums of Asian 
Art, Washington D.C. until 14 August 2014. giovanni antonio canal, called canaletto, The  

Bucintoro at the Molo on Ascension Day loaned to 
‘splendore a Venezia: Art and music from the renaissance 
to the Baroque in the serenissima’ at The montreal 
museum of Fine Arts, montreal, 12 october 2013 – 19 
january 2014 followed by portland Art museum,  
oregon, 15 February – 11 may 2014

guido reni, Saint Sebastian loaned to ‘Caravaggio  
to Canaletto: The glory of italian Baroque and rococo 
painting’ at the szépművészeti múzeum, Budapest,  
26 october 2013 – 16 February 2014 

Jean-antoine Watteau, Les Plaisirs 
du Bal loaned to ‘From Watteau to 
Fragonard... les fetes galantes’ at  
The musée jacquemart-André, paris,  
14 march 2014 – 21 july 2014

raphael, saint anthony of padua and saint Francis  
of assisi loaned to raphael at the national museum  
of Western Art, Tokyo, 2 march – 2 june 2013

William Hogarth, Portrait of a 
Man, thomas gainsborough, A 
Couple in a Landscape loaned to 
‘hogarth, reynolds, Turner: British 
painting and the rise of modernity’, 
The Fondazione roma Arte-musei, 
rome, 15 April – 20 july 2014

a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 13 – 14 d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k
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6 February – 19 May 2013 
One of the most dramatic exhibitions in the Gallery’s history removes 
works from the Permanent Collection transforming the enfilade to 
evoke a Sevillian church.

 The painter’s three large-scale lunettes, are all hung high with The 
Immaculate Conception of the Venerables Sacerdotes (1660-65) hung at the 
end of the space, forming the ‘high altar’ and reunited with its ornate 
baroque altar-frame.

 also on display is the newly-discovered Penitent Saint Peter (c. 1670), 
never before been seen in public, and The Baptism of Christ (1667-68), 
taken down from its high position in Seville Cathedral for the first 
time since it was installed by Justino de neve in 1667.

 The show is co-curated by our Holly and arturo Melosi Chief  
Curator, Dr. Xavier Bray. it is the third in The Melosi Series:  
rediscovering Old Masters, supported by the arthur and Holly  
Magill Foundation.

april 2013
‘Murillo and Justino de neve: The art of Friendship’ is accompanied by 
a display featuring newly conserved, funded by the Bank of america 
Merrill lynch art Conservation Project. Conservation and technical 
analysis of Murillo’s Beggar Boys and The Flower Girl unearths changes 
to composition visible in x-rays of Three Boys, evidence of squaring 
up of Invitation to a Game of Argolla for copying, and the discovery 
of a completely different composition, showing an immaculate 
Conception beneath the surface paint of The Flower Girl – rare evidence 
that Murillo recycled his canvases.

 

april 2013
Held in conjunction with artes, the iberian & latin 
american visual Culture Group and the Spanish embassy, 
the day features short interventions in the exhibition by 
speakers including Gabriele Finaldi, co-director of the 
Museo nacional del Prado.

murillo and juStino de neve, 
the art oF FriendShip

FebruaryJanuary march aPril

revealing new conServation

the murillo ScholarS day

Conservation has allowed a more  
definitive dating of the work ‘Spring’ as a 
Flower Girl suggesting it is most probably 
post 1665 and thus making it likely that the 
model is in fact murillo’s daughter
dr. Xavier bray

the year in 
summary

From murillo to hockney, from the launch of our 
Artmobile to our work with dementia sufferers, 2013 – 2014 

exemplifies the Gallery’s wide-ranging programme

d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k
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July augustmay June

May 2013
Viewing at Dulwich Picture Gallery, c.1830, by James 
Stephanoff (c.1788-1874). 

29 May 2013
a long-term project with three partner 
organisations culminates in an exhibition at the 
embassy Tea Gallery in london Bridge. 65 young 
people from redthread Youth Club, Bellingham 
Gateway Youth Centre and wells Park Youth 
Club worked with printmaker victoria Browne 
to learn the skills needed to produce high 
quality prints.

11 JuNe 2013 – 12 JaNuary 2014
a display on Margaret Desenfans to mark the bicentenary of her  
death and to highlight her importance as a key figure in the founding 
of Dulwich Picture Gallery.

Joshua reynolds’ portrait – the only known image of her to date 
– forms the centrepiece. The work, assumed lost for over 70 years 
despite many attempts by the Gallery, re-emerged in 2002 when the 
Gallery was contacted by its current owner who generously agreed to 
lend the painting to the Gallery

12 JuNe – 22 septeMber 2013
Curator David Boyd Haycock brings together some of the best and 
most innovative works by this influential group of artists who became 
among the most distinctive British artists of the early twentieth 
century.

The exhibition culminates with a selection of their paintings 
made during and immediately after the Great war, some of the most 
celebrated visual records of the conflict. The display includes Stanley 
Spencer’s acclaimed Unveiling Cookham War Memorial (1922), the first 
time it has been on display for almost 25 years.

august 2013
an intergenerational collaboration with english 
Touring Opera, young musicians from Dulwich 
College and the royal College of Music, and 
people with dementia interpreting the Collection 
through song. 

i loved being able to experience the  
art gallery & take from it what i wanted
youNg participaNt, soutHWark giFted & taleNted course

Bliss was it in that 
dawn to be alive / 
But to be young was 
very heaven – every 
young generation of 
artists feels like this 
but the generation 
1908–12 was a 
truly revolutionary 
moment
Jackie WullscHlager,  
tHe FiNaNcial tiMes

d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k

Southwark giFted  
and talented courSe

JuNe – July 2013
Secondary students are selected for a project inspired 
by A Crisis of Brilliance to explore composition 
and shape in their artwork drawing from Futurism, 
vorticsm and the impact of the First world war.
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a criSiS oF brilliance:  
naSh, nevinSon, Spencer, 
gertler, carrington, bomberg viSual to vocal

the myth Factory:  
a warhol-inSpired  
youth exhibition

margaret deSenFanS (1731–1813),  
the woman behind the gallery



1918

2 0 1 3 – 1 4  t i m e l i n e

november decembersePtember october

16 october 2013 – 12 JaNuary 2014
The first major exhibition dedicated to american-born artist James 
Mcneill whistler’s time in the capital between 1859 and 1903 opens. 

Showcasing whistler’s scenes of london the exhibition includes 
paintings, etchings and drawings and presents over 70 objects 
to provide new insight into the artist’s depiction of the Thames 
and victorian london during a transitional period in his creative 
development.

Co-curated by Professor Margaret F. MacDonald, Honorary 
Professorial research Fellow and Dr. Patricia de Montfort, lecturer, 
School of Culture and Creative arts, university of Glasgow. 

deceMber 2013
The Gallery hosts an in-focus study day with CODarT, the 
international network for curators and experts in Dutch and Flemish 
art, to discuss new research that has come to light during the writing 
of the Gallery’s forthcoming Dutch and Flemish Schools catalogue. 

10 septeMber 2013
Over 150 people including the Mayors of 
three local boroughs watch Stirling Moss and 
Humphrey Ocean ra launch the artmobile 
in the Gallery Grounds. The artmobile, a new 
vehicle for transporting art materials and artists 
goes straight on to community sites during 
the day. we are grateful to James and Beatrice 
lupton for enabling this innovative new strand 
of our education work

Sackler centre 
re-opening

14 october 2013
a refurbishment of the Sackler Centre 
designed by rick Mather architects is 
opened by Dame Theresa Sackler DBe. The 
Gallery is grateful to the Dr Mortimer and 
Theresa Sackler Foundation for a generous 
donation of £90,850 to enable the Sackler 
Centre for arts education at Dulwich 
Picture Gallery to be fully refurbished after 
13 years of use.

a c grayling talkS  
ideaS and the Future

deceMber 2013
Professor anthony Grayling closes the 
Contextual lecture Series 2013 with Ideas 
and the Future. The 2014 instalment of the 
lecture series is the most popular yet 
featuring expert talks on some of the most 
influential figures in history.

Whistler settled in london in 1859 and his 
etchings and paintings mark one of his 
most successful and profound assaults  
on the art establishment of his day
Margaret MacdoNald

innovative 
skylights and 
unlikely attached 
mausoleum for its 
three founders, 
and the impressive 
poussins, 
rembrandts and 
rubenses reward 
the trip to south 
london. 
tHe Wall street JourNal

d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k

an american in london:  
whiStler and the thameS

international curatorS  
travel to dulwich

artmobile launcheS

youth engagement open day: 
launching ‘the creativeS’

NoveMber 2013
Young people attended the Gallery for a day of creative activities with 
professional artists. The open day launched a new Youth Programme The 
Creatives offering in-house and outreach activities for young people.
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march aPrilJanuary February

February 2013
Young carers recite their poems inspired by the Permanent Collection 
to an invited audience, including guest speaker Conrad Murray, 
music producer and director of the BaC Beatbox academy. wordart  
featured a series of creative writing workshops with professional poet 
Paul Cree and action for Children’s Southwark Young Carers. 

5 February – 11 May 2014
Timed to coincide with the 60th anniversary of David Hockney’s first 
print, we present a major exhibition celebrating the artist’s long and 
diverse career as printmaker.

Grouped by theme and technique the exhibition gives an overview 
of the artist revealing his extensive knowledge of the work of fellow 
printmakers throughout the ages.

Concentrating on Hockney’s two main print techniques – etching 
and lithography – the show features early etchings done whilst 
a student, including a complete set of A Rakes Progress and three 
extremely rare lithographs including Self-Portrait, his first print work.

Curated by richard lloyd, Head of international Prints and 
Multiples at Christies.

14 MarcH 2014
The Gallery’s Les Plaisirs du Bal by watteau and Pater’s Fête 
Champêtre go on display at a major exhibition at the Musée 
Jacquemart-andré, Paris.

hockney is one of the 
most prolific, diverse 
and technically astute 
printmakers alive. 
he has been making 
prints since 1954 
and throughout the 
subsequent 60 years  
he has continued to 
work and experiment. 
ricHard lloyd

Young people – we don’t 
always hear from you guys. 
You’ve got something to 
say. What you said tonight 
was very moving. Dulwich 
picture gallery, in Dulwich 
Village, of all places, is 
listening, and for that  
i think we should give  
a round of applause
paul cree, Word artist

d u lw i c h p i c t u r e g a l l e r y. o r g . u k

FriendS 60th 
anniverSary

JaNuary 2014
The Curatorial Department collaborates 
with the Friends to celebrate their 60th 
anniversary by highlighting the works 
they have adopted in the gallery with 
labels and public talks throughout the 
year. Over the years the Friends have 
funded the conservation of more than 50 
paintings and frames.

maStering the maSterS

JaNuary 2014
a pilot collaboration with Camberwell College of art. 
To complement their theoretical lectures 40 first year 
art students are mentored by an artist. The tutor 
evaluated the sessions as ‘excellent’ and an annual 
programme with Camberwell School of art has now 
been established.
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wordart, Southwark young 
carerS perFormance

hockney, printmaker

watteau in France
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eXcePtional 
PhilanthroPy
From the Start, Dulwich Picture Gallery has 
been built on the generosity of private individuals 
convinced that art should be for the benefit of all. 
We receive no regular government funding and rely 
on the continuing support of many to sustain what 
we do. Our thanks to all – but especially to these 
most generous supporters in 2013/14….

The Sackler Trust

Heritage Lottery Fund / Department for Culture,  
Media & Sport Catalyst: Endowments Fund

Linbury Trust

The Estate of Mrs Anne Crosthwait

The Foyle Foundation

The M&G Group

The Arthur and Holly Magill Foundation  
*via the American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

Dennis and Lesley Robins

RBC Wealth Management

The Elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust

Nicholas and Pel Mountain

Sir Siegmund Warburg’s Voluntary Settlement

Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

22 23
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looking ahead

ulwich Picture Gallery’s mission is to achieve 
international recognition as one of the world’s 
great galleries, through a creative blend of 
excellence and innovative programming in all 
its activities.

Our founders believed that art should be made  
available for the public to enjoy. Their bequest brought  
with it the world’s original picture gallery, expressly 
designed for showing great paintings in a welcome, 
and approachable setting. Today we use our innovative 
exhibitions, authoritative scholarship and pioneering 
education programmes to change lives for the better.

in the course of the next year, with a new senior team 
in place, we will develop a strategy for the next three years 
to ensure that these aims continue to be fulfilled, focussing 
on developing the number and range of our visitors, and on 
ensuring our financial sustainability. 

we will continue to develop our distinctive exhibition 
programme, focussing on modern British artists and on 
artists from western countries who are often overlooked. 
we will continue our fundraising for the Catalyst learning 
endowment, in order to ensure that our education and 
learning programmes can continue to innovate and deliver 
the highest possible benefit to their users. and we will 
continue to preserve, display and interpret our Old Master 
collection and Sir John Soane’s famous building for present 
and future generations.
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‘ From the Forest to the Sea:  
Emily Carr in British Columbia’,  
1 November 2014 – 8 March 2015
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Financial 
review

inveStmentS
net unrealised gains in investments totalled £2,000, 
compared to £983,000 in 2012/13. The downturn in growth 
can be attributed to the reorganisation of the portfolio 
following the move to rathbones at the end of 2012/13, as 
well as the impact of the ‘taper tantrum’ in the early summer.

The Trustees’ policy is to balance the need for consistent 
and sustainable income with protecting the real long-term 
value of the endowment. rathbone investment Management 
limited were appointed as fund managers on 8 February 
2013 and the overall target set was to achieve an income 
yield net of fees of 4% per annum and a total return, net 
of fees, of not less than rPi plus 3.5%. The Trustees review 
performance against these targets annually. in March 2014, 
Trustees decided to move to a total return approach in order 
to give rathbones greater freedom to invest in growth assets 
without the need to buy assets delivering immediate income. 
The revised policy is to achieve total return of 3.5% above rPi 
inflation, allowing the Gallery to withdraw 3.5% of the value 
of the portfolio as either income or capital to contribute to its 
running costs each year. 

The total net incoming resources and investment gains 
of £1.1 million (2012/13: £1.2 million) resulted in a rise in net 
assets to £24.8 million as at 31 March 2014 from £23.7 million 
last year.

reServeS policy
The Gallery holds endowment funds, restricted funds, 
and unrestricted funds which include funds designated 
by Trustees for specific purposes, and general funds, 
comprising the operating fund and the pension reserve. 
Free reserves at 31 March 2014 amounted to £160,000, 
which includes a deficit of £533,000 on the pension reserve 
and £494,000 of designated funds. The designated funds 
represent funds designated by the Trustees for specific 
purposes, primarily in relation to exhibitions, which will be 
drawn upon to cover any arising shortfall in other income 
streams. The operating fund is an unrestricted reserve 
maintained to enable the Gallery to carry on its charitable 
activities. The operating fund balance at 31 March 2014 
was £199,000. unrestricted reserves will continue to be 
supplemented by additional fundraising or operating 
surplus in order to achieve a level equivalent to between six 
and twelve months’ core operating costs. 

Radhika Radhakrishnan – Chair, Finance and Audit Committee
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013/14 was a record breaking year in terms 
of visitor numbers, underpinned by a highly 
successful exhibition programme, which 
helped the Gallery improve its financial 
performance. Overall, incoming resources 

were up 20%, partly thanks to a significant increase in 
donations to the endowment fund of £570,000 compared 
to the previous year. even excluding these contributions, 
income still grew by 7% year on year, with income from 
charitable activities up almost 96%.

Donations to the endowment fund totalled £1.8 million 
(including £555,000 of match funding from the DCMS/HlF 
Catalyst fund) compared to £1.2 million in 2012/13. while 
a tribute to the power of match funding to incentivise 
donations to endowment, this had an impact on our 
ability to secure voluntary income towards the Gallery’s 
general programme and costs. excluding these donations, 
we raised £902,000 in voluntary income, down from £1.3 
million. increased visitor numbers helped drive up self-
generated income from admission, retail sales and event 
hire. Together these rose by over £600,000 compared to 
2012/13, and represented 30% of total income in the year, 
compared to 20% in 2012/13. 

expenditure in the year totalled £3.4 million, a 
reduction of 6% on 2012/13. Savings were seen in both 
the costs of generating funds, where the margin in the 
shop improved from 25% to 35%, and in the costs of 
charitable activity, where we achieved direct savings in 
the exhibition budgets.

Overall, the Gallery reported net income for the 
year, before unrealised gains or losses, of £1.2 million. 
However, this masked a deficit on in-year operations of 
£453,000, including a net deficit on the general operating 
fund of £256,000. Trustees are determined to move to a 
position of in-year operating surplus as soon as possible, 
so balancing fundraising for revenue with raising money 
for the endowment is a key challenge for the years ahead. 
General funds further incurred an actuarial loss of 
£180,000 (2012/13: loss of £68,000) on the defined benefit 
pension scheme, bringing the balance on this fund to a 
deficit of £533,000 at the year end. Trustees are making 
additional payments to reduce the deficit on the scheme  
as recommended by the scheme actuary.

2
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dulwich picture gallery iS an independent charitable truSt  
Charity number: 1040942
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director (the Sackler director)
ian aC Dejardin
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BALANCE ShEETS AS AT 31 MArCh 2014

  Unrestricted funds      Total 2014  Total 2013 
 Note General  Designated  Restricted  Endowment  
 1b  funds  funds  funds  funds   
  £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000 
 
incoming reSourceS
Incoming resources from  
generated funds       

Voluntary income 2 515  -  387  1,773  2,675  2,451
Activities for generating funds 3 463  -  -  -  463  306
Investment income 4 530  5  40  -  575  647 

Incoming resources from  5 824  -  86  -  910  465 
charitable activities 
 
total incoming resources  2,332  5  513  1,773  4,623  3,869 
        
  
reSourceS expended
Cost of generating funds 6 627  1  -  75  703  676 
Charitable activities 7 1,846  -  764  -  2,610  2,854 
Governance costs 8 65  -  -  -  65  62  
 
total resources expended  2,538  1  764  75  3,378  3,592 
        
Net incoming/(outgoing)  
resources before transfers  (206) 4  (251) 1,698  1,245  277 
Transfers between funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  
 
 
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources for year       
before recognised gains/(losses)  (206) 4  (251) 1,698  1,245  277 
Net gain on investments 12 -  -  -  2  2  983 
Actuarial (loss) on defined   (180) -  -  -  (180) (68) 
benefit pension scheme        
 
Net movements in funds  (386) 4  (251) 1,700  1,067  1,192 
 
Balance brought forward at 1 April   52  490  3,912  19,287  23,741  22,549 
 
balance carried forward at 31 March  (334) 494  3,661  20,987  24,808  23,741

All amounts derive from continuing activities. 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

   Note  2014  2014  2013  2013 
   1b  Gallery  Group  Gallery  Group 
    £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
 
Fixed assets

Investments   12  22,277  22,277  18,670  18,670 
Gallery extension   16  3,013  3,013  3,022  3,022 
Other fixed assets   17  45  45  37  37 

    25,335  25,335  21,729  21,729  

current assets
Long term debtor   10,18  23  -  23  - 
Stock    -  44  -  38 
Debtors   19  331  252  267  227 
Short term deposits    69  80  625  637 
Bank balance and cash in hand    99  181  2,100  2,144

    499  557  3,015  3,046  

liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year  20  (529) (546) (611) (624) 
 
Net current assets    (30) 11  2,404  2,422  
 
total assets less current liabilities    25,305  25,346  24,133  24,151 

 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 21  (5) (5) (7) (7)
Net assets excluding pension liability    25,300  25,341  24,126  24,144

Defined benefit pension scheme liability  22  (533) (533) (403) (403)

total assets less liabilities including pension scheme liability  24,767  24,808  23,723  23,741 

Represented by:
endowment funds   24  20,987  20,987  19,286  19,286 
restricted funds   25  3,661  3,661  3,912  3,912
unrestricted funds       

Designated funds   26  494  494  490  490 
General funds

Operating fund   26  158  199  438  456
Pension reserve   22,26  (533) (533) (403) (403)

    (375) (334) 35  53 

total funds    24,767  24,808  23,723  23,741  
 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Approved by the Trustees on 23 July 2014 and signed on their behalf by

Simon Freakley - Chairman of Trustees. Radhika Radhakrishnan - Chairman of Finance and Audit Committee

conSolidated Statement oF Financial activitieS For the year ended 31 march 2014
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CoNSoLIdATEd CASh FLow STATEMENT 
For ThE yEAr ENdEd 31 MArCh 2014

      2014  2013 
      £’000  £’000 
 
reconciliation of net incoming resources to net cash  outflow from operating activities    
 Net outgoing resources before other recognised gains & losses    (453) (856)
Investment income receivable      (575) (647)
Depreciation charge for year      149  163 
FRS17 pension fund adjustment      50  (45)
Additions to endowment funds      1,698  1,133 
(Increase)/decrease in stock      (6) 9 
(Increase)/decrease in debtors      (32) - 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors       (78) 28  
 
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities     753  (215)
        
cash Flow statement        
 Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from operating activities     753  (215)
Investment income received      561  733 
New funds invested      (3,700) (800)
Purchases of investments      (12,551) (14,473)
Sale proceeds of investments      12,572  16,911 
Obligations under finance leases      (7) (7)
Capital expenditure      (149) (141 
 
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year      (2,520) 2,018 
        
reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in liquid resources      
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year      (2,520) 2,018 
Decrease in current asset investments      -  (713)
Net funds at 1 April 2013      2,781  1,476  
 
Net funds at 31 March 2014      261  2,781 
        
Analysis of change in liquid resources:    Cash at bank   Short term   Current asset  Total 2014 
    and in hand  deposits  investments  
    £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
At 1 April 2013    2,144  637  -  2,781 
Cash flows    (1,963) (557) -  (2,520) 
 
At 31 March 2014    181  80  -  261 

NoTES To ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) basis oF accouNtiNg
The accounts have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, as modified 
by the revaluation of investments, and 
in accordance with the Statement of 
recommended Practice accounting and 
reporting by Charities (the SOrP) revised 
in 2005, applicable accounting standards 
and the Charities act 2011.  

(b) basis oF coNsolidatioN
The accounts incorporate the results of the 
wholly-owned trading company, Dulwich 
Picture Gallery enterprises limited.  The 
Trustees have taken advantage of the 
exemption not to prepare a separate 
income and expenditure account for 
the parent charity and the consolidated 
statement of financial activities is in a 
format which complies with FrS 3.  

after the gain on investment assets, the 
gross income and result for the parent 
charity for the year ended 31 March 
2014 was £4,237,000 and a surplus of 
£1,176,000.   Separate balance sheets as at 
31 March 2014 are presented for the group 
as a whole and for the parent charity.  

(c) goiNg coNcerN
The Trustees consider that the group 
is able to continue to operate as a going 
concern and that it is appropriate to 
prepare the financial statements on a 
going concern basis.

(d) iNcoMiNg resources
all incoming resources are included in 
the Statement of Financial activities 
when the Gallery is entitled to the income 
and the amount can be quantified with 
reasonable accuracy.

income received in advance is deferred 
until entitlement to the income has 
arisen, at which time it is credited to the 
Statement of Financial activities.  

Donations and investment income 
are shown in the accounts when the 

conditions for receipt have been met.  
incoming resources from endowment 
funds are treated as unrestricted.

legacies are recognised as income 
when there is certainty of receipt and 
the amount due can be ascertained with 
reasonable accuracy. 

Gifts in kind, for which the benefit to 
the charity is reasonably quantifiable and 
measureable and excluding volunteer 
time, are recognised as donations in the 
period in which the gift is received.  They 
are valued at the price the charity would 
have had to pay on the open market at the 
time of the gift.  an equivalent amount is 
recognised as a cost in the period.  
   

(e) eXpeNditure
liabilities are recognised as resources 
expended as soon as there is a legal or 
constructive obligation committing the 
charity to the expenditure.

irrecoverable vaT is treated as an 
expense.

expenditure is classified under 
the principal categories of charitable 
activities, the costs of generating funds 
and governance costs.  

The costs of generating funds include 
investment management, staff and other 
costs associated with fundraising, as 
well as the costs of operational activities 
undertaken to generate funds. 

Charitable activities costs include all 
expenditure on the education department, 
the temporary exhibition programme, the 
collection and building, and publicity.

Governance costs include all 
expenditure on constitutional and 
statutory requirements, costs associated 
with Board meetings and of staff liaising 
with Board members on strategic issues.

Support costs, which include 
administration staff costs and general 
office expenses, have been apportioned to 
the Gallery’s activities.  Further details of 
the basis of apportionment can be found 

in note 9 to the financial statements.
     

(f) peNsioN costs
Staff in post prior to February 2002 were 
offered membership of a defined benefit 
pension scheme.  Contributions to the 
scheme are charged in the Statement of 
Financial activities so as to spread the cost 
of pensions over the employees’ working 
lives.  The investments comprising the 
funds of the plan are administered 
by pension fund trustees and are 
independent of the Gallery’s assets.  any 
unrealised gains or losses are recognised 
in the Statement of Financial activities.  
Further details are set out in note 22.  

Other staff are offered membership of 
a defined contribution scheme.  employer 
contributions to this scheme are charged 
in the Statement of Financial activities 
as incurred.  Further details are set out in 
note 23.

 
(g) Heritage assets 

For the Collection that existed at 1 april 
2001, the Trustees are of the opinion that, 
because valuation information cannot 
be obtained at a cost commensurate 
with the benefits to users of the financial 
statements, a valuation approach is not 
practicable and so the Gallery has adopted 
a non-recognition approach. 

The Trustees have formed this opinion on 
the basis that:
- the acquisition of new items for the 
collection is infrequent 
- the amounts involved are not material, 
either year-by-year in respect of income, 
or collectively since 2001, in relation to the 
balance sheet; and 
- the inclusion of heritage assets acquired 
since 2001 at a total cost/value of £379,000 
would show a misleading position about 
heritage assets to a reader of the accounts.

1. accounting policieS
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expenditure which is required to 
preserve or prevent further deterioration 
of individual collection items is recognised 
in the Statement of Financial activities 
when it is incurred.  an overview of the 
scope of the Gallery Collection is set out at 
notes 13, 14 and 15.

(h) taNgible FiXed assets
assets which are purchased at a cost 
of more than £5,000 are capitalised.  iT 
hardware and software assets which cost 
more than £1,000 are also capitalised as 
too are laptops and central processor 
units.

The cost of buildings, refurbishment, 
and fixtures and fittings acquired or 
incurred from 1 april 2000 is capitalised 
and included in Fixed assets in the 
Balance Sheet.  These costs are being 
depreciated against the Development 
fund, on a straight line basis over:
- fifty years in the case of buildings; and 
- ten years in the case of refurbishment 
and fixtures and fittings.  

The cost of furniture and equipment 
purchased for the Gallery is capitalised 
and depreciated against the operating 
fund or restricted funds over:
- four years in the case of furniture, 
gallery and office equipment, computer 
hardware and motor vehicles; and 
- three years in the case of computer 
software. 

Depreciation is charged on all tangible 
fixed assets, except assets under 
construction for which depreciation is not 
charged until the year the asset has been 
brought into use.

(i) leases
assets held under finance leases, which 
are leases where substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the asset 
have passed to the Gallery, are capitalised 

in the balance sheet and are depreciated 
over their useful economic lives. 

The capital elements of future 
obligations under finance lease contracts 
are included as liabilities in the balance 
sheet. 

rental payments are apportioned 
between the finance element, which 
is charged against the Statement of 
Financial activities and represents a 
constant proportion of the balance of 
capital repayments outstanding, and the 
capital element, which reduces the lease 
creditor.

(j) iNvestMeNts
investments are shown in the accounts at 
current market value.  in accordance with 
the SOrP, investment management fees 
have been charged against endowment 
fund capital.  any unrealised gains 
or losses arising from the policy are 
recognised in the Statement of Financial 
activities.

investments in subsidiaries are valued 
at cost.

(k) stock
Stock, which comprises catalogues, 
postcards and other goods for sale in the 
shop run by the wholly owned subsidiary, 
Dulwich Picture Gallery enterprises ltd, 
is valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

(l) ForeigN curreNcies
assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 
date.  Transactions in foreign currencies 
are recorded at the rate ruling at the 
time of the transaction.  all exchange 
differences are taken to the Statement of 
Financial activities.

(m) FuNd accouNtiNg
The Gallery maintains general, designated, 

restricted and endowments funds as set 
out in notes 24 to 26.

unrestricted funds are available for 
use at the discretion of the Trustees in 
furtherance of the charitable objectives of 
the Gallery.

Designated funds comprise funds 
which have been set aside at the discretion 
of the Trustees for specific purposes.

 restricted funds are those subject to 
specific restrictions imposed by donors, by 
the purpose of the appeal of conditions of 
the funding, and are credited to restricted 
income in the year in which they are 
received.  where amounts are not spent 
in full in that year, the balance is carried 
forward in restricted funds and used 
in subsequent years in line with the 
restrictions placed by the donor.

The endowment funds are split 
between permanent endowment funds, 
where the capital must be retained, and 
expendable endowment funds, which can 
be converted into income at the discretion 
of the Trustees.

2. voluntary income

These are made up as follows:         
 Unrestricted    Restricted funds    Endowment  
 funds       funds  Total 
    Collection/ Capital
  Education  Exhibitions    building development Asset   
 £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000 
        
The Sackler Trust -  -  -  -  -  -  1,000  1,000 
DCMS/HLF Catalyst  
Endowments -  -  -  -  -  -  555  555 
Friends of Dulwich  
Picture Gallery 177  13  35  -  -  -  -  225 
Linbury Trust -  -  -  -  -  -  100  100 
Anne Crosthwait legacy -  -  -  -  -  -  88  88 
Foyle Foundation -  -  -  -  75  -  -  75 
Desenfans Circle, 1811  
Club and other patrons  72  -  -  -  -  -  -  72 
Dennis & Lesley Robins 12  -  -  46  -  -  -  58 
American Friends of  
Dulwich Picture  
Gallery Inc. -  -  -  48  -  -  -  48 
The Elizabeth Cayzer  
Charitable Trust -  -  27  -  -  -  -  27 
Anonymous donor -  -  25  -  -  -  -  25 
Sir Siegmund Warburg’s  
Voluntary Settlement 25  -  -  -  -  -  -  25 
RBC Wealth Management -  -  25  -  -  -  -  25 
Canadian Friends of Dulwich          
Picture Gallery Inc. -  -  22  -  -  -  -  22 
Anonymous donor -  -  -  -  -  -  15  15 
Art of England  
(Gift in kind) -  -  15  -  -  -  -  15 
Farrow & Ball  
(Gift in kind) -  -  13  -  -  -  -  13 
The Michael Marks  
Charitable Trust -  -  10  -  -  -  -  10 
Bernard Sunley  
Charitable Foundation -  10  -  -  -  -  -  10 
The Golden Bottle  
Charitable Trust 10  -  -  -  -  -  -  10 
Zolfo Cooper LLP -  -  10  -  -  -  -  10 
Donations by visitors to the   
Gallery including gift aid 99  -  -  -  -  -  -  99 
Other donations, grants  
and sponsorships 120  23  7  13  -  -  15  178 
         
 515  47  188  107  75  -  1,773  2,705 
less amounts received  
in advance -  -  (30) -  -  -  -  (30)
        
total 2013-14 515  47  158  107  75  -  1,773  2,675 
total 2012-13 378  77  607  36  123  26  1,204  2,451  
 
Included in the above figures is an amount of £28,000 relating to donated goods and services and is made up as follows: £28,000 - Exhibitions  (2012-13: £68,000 - Exhibitions).
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3. activitieS For generating FundS

4. inveStment income

5. incoming reSourceS From charitable activitieS

8. governance coStS

6. coSt oF generating FundS

7. charitable activitieS

       2014  2013  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Shop sales       341  210 
Catering and gallery hire       122  96 
         
       463  306  
All income from activities for generating funds is attributable to unrestricted funds.

       2014  2013  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Rental income       5 9
Dividend income       567 636
Interest income       3 2 
 
       575 647

       2014  2013  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Admission charges       600  308 
Education       86  85 
Exhibition sales       178  47 
Other collection income       46  25  
 
       910  465 
Incoming education resources are attributable to the Education restricted fund and the remaining incoming resources to unrestricted funds.

       2014  2013  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Support costs       25  26 
Audit fee       7  5 
Other professional fees       33  31  
 
       65  62 
These costs have all been charged to unrestricted funds. 
Included in “Other professional fees” is £1,795 which was payable to the auditors in respect of taxation advice (2012-13: £1,975).

    Staff costs  Other  Support  Total  Total   
     direct costs  costs  2014 2013 
        £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000 
 
Cost of goods sold and other trading costs   101  182  13  296  229 
Investment management costs    -  75  -  75  71 
Costs of generating voluntary income   239  37  56  332  376  
 
    340  294  69  703  676  
Investment management costs have been charged against the endowment funds (note 23) and Stanley Scott designated fund (note 25)  and all other costs 
against unrestricted funds. Staff costs are allocated to governance and trading in relation to estimated time spent.

    Staff costs  Other  Support  Total  Total   
     direct costs  costs  2014 2013 
        £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000 
 
Education    191  176  45  412  391 
Exhibitions    185  507  43  735  989 
Collection and building    522  450  124  1,096  1,077 
Collection acquisition    -  -  -  -  10 
Publicity    114  78  27  219  255 
Gallery development    -  148  -  148  132  
 
    1,012  1,359  239  2,610  2,854 

These costs are charged as follows:         
 
     Unrestricted  Restricted  Total  Total 
     funds  funds  2014 2013 
     £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000 
 
Education     45  367  412  391 
Exhibitions     568  167  735  989 
Collection and building     1,013  83  1,096  1,077 

Collection acquisition     -  -  -  10 
Publicity     219  -  219  255 
Gallery development     -  148  148  132  
 
     1,846  764  2,610  2,854
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9. Support coStS

 Trading  Fundraising Education  Exhibitions  Collection  Publicity  Governance  Total 2014  Total 2013  
     and building      
 £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000  
 
Staff costs -  24  19  18  51  12  22  146  152 
Office expenses 13  32  26  25  71  15  3  185  165 
Depreciation -  -  -  -  2  -  -  2  31 

 13  56  45  43  124  27  25  333  348 

The support staff costs are allocated based on staff costs of direct activities. Office expenses and depreciation are apportioned according to staff costs.  
Included in depreciation is an amount of £2,517 (2013: £2,517) relating to the depreciation of assets held under finance leases.

11. StaFF remuneration

During the year the average number of employees and their total remuneration, including employer’s  
National Insurance and employer’s pension costs were as follows: 
       2014  2013 
 
Average number
Trading       3  3 
Fundraising       5  5 
Education       8  10 
Exhibitions       4  5 
Collection and building       39  36 
Communications       5  5 
Support       6  6  
 
       70  70 
         
Full time equivalent staff       53 52
         
 
       2014  2013  
       £’000  £’000 
 
Gross pay       1,408  1,328 
Employer’s National Insurance       100  107 
Employer’s pension costs       40  49 

total remuneration       1,548  1,484  
 
During the year, 1 employee earned between £60,000 and £70,000; they were also a member of the defined contribution pension scheme through Standard 
Life, with employer contributions of £8,729 (2012-13: £5,000), during the year.  During the year, a further 1 employee earned between £70,000 and £80,000;  
they were also a member of the defined benefit pension scheme through the London Pensions Fund Authority, with employer contribution of £18,000 (2012-13: 
£18,000) during the year.

 The Trustees have not received any remuneration or reimbursement of expenses during the year.  

These staff numbers do not include artists running Education programmes or Gallery guides. The average monthly number of artists and guides paid was 14 
(2012-13: 17) and their gross pay was £65,000 (2012-13: £62,000).  A number of guides waived their fees.

Staff are offered membership of a defined contribution pension scheme through Standard Life; see Note 23.

10. dulwich picture gallery enterpriSeS limited

The results of Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned trading company, are consolidated with those of the Gallery and 
were as follows in the year ended 31 March 2014: 
     Shop  Events  Total 2014  Total 2013 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  
 
Turnover     359  46  405  266 
Cost of sales     (146) (4) (150) (98)

gross profit     213  42  255  168 
Administrative expenses       (185) (171)

profit on ordinary activities       70  (3)
Donation to Dulwich Picture Gallery      (70) - 

profit on ordinary activities before taxation      -  (3)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities       -  - 

retained profit transferred to reserves       -  (3)
       
the company’s balance sheet as at 31 March 2014 was as follows:    £’000  £’000 
 
current assets         
  Stock       44  38 
  Debtors       19 14 
  Cash at bank and in hand       93  56  

       156  108 
creditors          
  Amounts falling due within one year      (116) (68)

Net current assets       40  40 

creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year       
  Long term loan from parent       (23) (23)

total assets less current liabilities       17  17 

capital and reserves
  Called up share capital       -  - 
  Profit and loss account       17  17 

equity shareholders’ funds       17  17 
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12. inveStmentS

13. tangible Fixed aSSetS - heritage aSSetS 

14. Five year Summary oF heritage aSSet tranSactionS

       Fixed asset 
       investments 
       £’000 Total 

Market value as at 1 April 2013       18,670  18,670 
Add: Acquisitions at cost       16,250  16,250 
Deduct: Disposals at carrying value       (12,572) (12,572)
Investment management fees       (74) (74)
Net gain on investments charged to Statement of Financial Activities    2  2 

Market value as at 31 March 2014       22,277  22,277  
 
The proceeds from the sale of investments during the year are reinvested during the year.

Rathbone Investment Management Limited were appointed as fund managers on 8 February 2013 and have considerable freedom to manage asset allocations, 
within a framework of maximum allocations as decided by the Trustees. 

The overall target set on appointment was to achieve an income yield net of fees of 4% per annum and a total return, net of fees, of not less than RPI plus 3.5%.  
In March 2014, Trustees decided to move to a total return approach in order to give Rathbones greater freedom to invest in growth assets without the constraints 
imposed by the need to buy assets delivering immediate income. The new policy is to achieve total return of 3.5% above RPI inflation, allowing the Gallery to 
withdraw 3.5% of the value of the portfolio as either income or capital to contribute to its running costs each year.  The actual total return on the Rathbones 
portfolio during the year was 2.5% (2012-13: 2.1%).        
 

Gallery and Group        Collection 
        £’000  

Cost:         
At 1 April 2013        379 
Additions        - 

At 31 March 2014        379   
 
There were no additions to heritage assets during 2013-14 (2012-13: none).   
There have been no disposals of heritage assets in the last five years.  

   2010  2011  2012  2013  2014  Total 
   £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000 
 
Purchases:         
Collection   110  221  -  -  -  331 
 
Total additions   110  221  -  -  -  331  
 
 

The Finance Committee has specified maximum allocations to each asset class within the Rathbones portfolio.   
These, and the actual allocations as at the year end, are as follows:        
       Maximum   Year end  
       allocation  allocation 
       %  %  

uk equities       75   37.4 
international equities       75   32.2 

North American        6.4 
European        6.3 
Japanese        9.0 
Asia Pacific        5.7 
Emerging markets        1.7 
Global         3.1 

bonds       90   20.9 
UK bonds        6.8 
International          10.1 
Active managed        4.0 

Hedge funds        -   
property       25   5.4 
infrastructure        20   2.2 
commodities        0.8 
private equity       25   1.0 
bear markets        0.1 
cash       100   0.2 
 
Total        100   
 

Overall foreign currency exposure is limited to 20%, unless hedged. 

At the year end the market value of this portfolio was £22,275,000 (2012-13: £18,668,000).  This included a single holding of 1,838,651 units of the Rathbones 
Unit Trust Management - Active Income and Growth Fund Inc with a market value at the end of the year of £1,967,357 representing 8.9% of the overall total 
market value of the investment portfolio.

There are small investments with a year end market value of £2,228 (2012-13: £2,180) in the COIF Charities Investment Fund Income Units run by CCLA 
Investment Management Ltd.  The income generated by these investments is used to fund art prizes at local schools.

The Gallery also owns the whole of the issued shared capital of Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises Ltd, comprising 2 shares of £1 each.  

Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises Ltd is incorporated in the UK (registered number 03173890) where it undertakes all of its operations.  Its principal activities 
comprise the management and operation of the retail shop at the Dulwich Picture Gallery, the running of events for both corporate and private clients and 
provision of other services, principally catalogue distribution, on behalf of Dulwich Picture Gallery.     
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15. Further inFormation on the gallery’S heritage aSSetS 16. gallery extenSion 

The Gallery has two heritage assets – the collection of paintings and the original Soane building. 

paintings

Dulwich Picture Gallery is the first purpose-built public art gallery in England, home to one of the most important collections of European 17th and 18th century 
Old Master paintings in the world. Its outstanding collection contains 658 paintings. There is also a small collection of five sculptures and about a hundred 
works on paper, as well as a collection of antique furniture. The value of the collection of pictures and historic furniture held at the Gallery is not reflected in 
the accounts. These are heritage assets whose historic value is not readily ascertainable, and the Trustees consider that the cost of obtaining a valuation would 
outweigh the benefit to users of the accounts.        

Originally the collection of Dulwich College founded by Edward Alleyn in 1626, the painter and art dealer, Sir Francis Bourgeois, left a major bequest of paintings 
in 1811 to the College. Bourgeois’ will effectively invented the concept of the modern public art gallery in England, enshrining in its wording the guiding 
principles of virtually every such institution since i.e. education (this was intended as a didactic collection, covering Western art as it was then understood); 
accessibility (the paintings were to be held ‘for the inspection of the public’); and conservation (it was partly to avoid the damaging effects of London’s air 
pollution that Bourgeois fixed on the clean air of Dulwich).  The paintings collection includes major works by Rembrandt, Van Dyck, Murillo, Poussin, Guercino, 
Watteau, Dou, Gainsborough, Rubens and Canaletto.  The Gallery also holds a programme of temporary loan exhibitions and it occasionally lends paintings from 
the collection to other institutions for temporary exhibitions.  It also accepts paintings on long-term loan in.    

At any time, around three hundred and fifty works are on permanent display.  The remaining items (about 300) are either on long-term loans out to National Trust 
properties, private clubs and other institutions or held in storage, although access to the latter is permitted to scholars and others for research purposes. 

buildings

Bourgeois left another condition in his will: that the architect for the new gallery should be his friend, Sir John Soane (1754-1837).  The brief was not just to build 
a gallery for the pictures, but also almshouses for six old ladies (now exhibition rooms) and a mausoleum for its founders.  The challenge was irresistible.  Soane 
turned up at Dulwich the very day after Bourgeois’ death.      

The building has influenced the design of art galleries ever since.  Examples include the Kimball Art Museum in Texas, the Getty Museum in Los Angeles and, 
nearer home, the Sainsbury Wing at the National Gallery London.  The pioneering roof-lanterns diffuse a natural top-light, creating an even wash of light over the 
walls, ideal for viewing paintings. 

Five new rooms were later added across the front, and parts of the Gallery had to be rebuilt after being bombed in the war.  In 1999-2000, Rick Mather Architects 
refurbished the Gallery and added an elegant glass and bronze cloister linking the original building with a new art studio, the Linbury Room and café.

During 2010-11 the Gallery was developed further with a new shop and entrance hall.  Work on the refurbishment of the public toilets and the creation of a 
new accessible entrance to the ticketing hall was completed during 2011-12, and work on the Gallery entrance lunettes and refurbishments of rooms 11 and 12, 
completed during January 2013.  During 2013-14, the Sackler Centre was refitted and the Gallery underwent some refurbishment following the Crisis of Brilliance 
exhibition.

 
preservation and management

The Gallery has a rolling conservation programme for paintings and frames, supported by targeted fundraising operations through the “Adopt an Old Master” 
and “Adopt a Frame” schemes.  Expenditure which, in the Trustees’ view, is required to preserve or clearly prevent further deterioration of individual collection 
items or the building is recognised in the Income and Expenditure account when it is incurred. 

 
Non inclusion of Heritage assets in the balance sheet

In the opinion of the Trustees, reliable information on cost or value is not available for the Gallery’s collection.  This is owing to the lack of information on purchase 
cost; the lack of comparable market values; the diverse nature of the objects; and the volume of items held. 

In the Trustees’ opinion, conventional valuation approaches lack sufficiently reliability and any valuation is likely to incur significant cost that is likely to be onerous.  
Even if valuations could be obtained this would not be at a cost commensurate with any benefits to the Gallery’s management, curatorial staff, the public, or users 
of the financial statements. 

For this reason the Collection, large proportions of which were gifted to the Gallery at nil cost and are incomparable in nature, are not recognised in the accounts 
as assets in the Gallery’s Balance Sheet. 

Heritage assets acquired since April 2001 are not reported in the balance sheet.  The Trustees are of the opinion that, because the acquisition of new items for the 
collection is infrequent, the amounts involved are not material, either year-by-year in respect of income, or collectively since 2001, in relation to the balance sheet; 
and the inclusion of heritage assets acquired since 2001 at a total cost/value of £379,000 would show a misleading position about heritage assets to a reader of 
the accounts.         
 

The fixed asset Gallery Extension represents capitalised expenditure incurred on the Gallery’s development project completed in May 2000. The fixed asset 
relates to additions to the freehold property, the acquisition of leasehold property, refurbishment and fixtures and fittings. The Soane building itself, which forms 
part of the Gallery’s inalienable assets, is not capitalised.      

The additions from 2010-11 represent capitalised expenditure incurred on the new shop and entrance hall completed during 2010-11, work on the refurbishment 
of the public toilets and the creation of a new accessible entrance to the ticketing hall, completed during 2011-12, and work on the Gallery entrance lunettes 
and refurbishments of rooms 11 and 12, completed during January 2013.  During 2013-14, the Sackler Centre was refitted and the Gallery underwent some 
refurbishment following the Crisis of Brilliance exhibition.

Gallery and Group    Freehold  Gallery  Fixtures &  Lease   Total 
    development  improvement  fittings  acquisition  
    £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000  
 
Cost:        
At 1 April 2013    3,144  653  12  258  4,067 
Additions    -  139  -  -  139 

at 31 March 2014    3,144  792  12  258  4,206 
        
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2013    817  149  12  67  1,045 
Charge for year    64  79  -  5  148 

at 31 March 2014    881  228  12  72  1,193 
        
Net book value        

at 31 March 2014    2,263  564  -  186  3,013 
        
at 1 april 2013    2,327  504  -  191  3,022 
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17. other Fixed aSSetS 19. debtorS

20. creditorS: amountS Falling due within one year

21. creditorS: amountS Falling due aFter more than one year

18. long term debtor

     2014 2014 2013 2013
     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking    67  -  -  - 
Other debtors     117  105  74  32 
Prepayments and accrued income     147  147  193  195  
 
     331  252  267  227  

     2014 2014 2013 2013
     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Trade creditors     279  286  199  204 
Other creditors     41  44  93  100 
Accruals     179  179  312  314 
Deferred income     30  37  7  7
 
     529  546  611  624 

     2014 2014 2013 2013
     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Obligation under finance lease due in more than 1 year   5  5  7  7 

Deferred income     2014 2014 2013 2013
     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Deferred income brought forward     7  7  27  27 
Released in year     (7) (7) (27) (27)
Deferred in year     30  37  7  7 

Deferred income carried forward     30  37  7  7
 
Incoming resources related to the future provision of services are deferred until the future services are provided and entitlement to the income is earned.

     2014 2014 2013 2013
     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  

Loan to subsidiary undertaking     23  -  23  -  

A loan of £45,000 was advanced by the Gallery to its wholly owned trading company, Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises Limited (DPGE) on 1 June 2004. It is 
secured by a floating charge over the assets of the company and carries interest at a rate of 1% above Bank of England base rate. During 2010-11 the Trustees 
of the Gallery reviewed the loan agreement and formally agreed to extend the loan on a rolling two year basis; this was renewed again in May 2014. Loan 
repayments of £9,000 each were made by DPGE in March 2005 and January 2006, and a further £4,000 was repaid during 2006/07, leaving a balance of £23,000. 

In prior years this loan has been categorised as a fixed asset but it has been re-classified as a debtors for these financial statements as this is considered a more 
appropriate reflection of the balance.        
 

Expenditure on equipment has been capitalised as set out below:

Gallery and Group  Gallery   Office  Office  Computers  Motor Assets under Total 
  equipment  equipment  furniture   vehicles construction 
  £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 
 
Cost:        
At 1 April 2013  199  57  47  158  10  -  481 
Additions  -  -  -  -  -  10  10 
Transfers between asset classes  -  -  -  (25) -  25  - 

at 31 March 2014  199  57  47  133  10  45  491  
        
Depreciation:        
At 1 April 2013  194  49  47  151  3  -  444 
Charge for year  5  3  -  (8) 2  -  2 

at 31 March 2014  199  52  47  143  5  -  446 
        
Net book value        

at 31 March 2014  -  5  -  (10) 5  45  45 

at 1 april 2013  5  8  -  17  7  -  37 

Assets are used primarily for charitable purposes; a small proportion is used for fundraising and governance.   

Included in Office Equipment are assets held under finance lease at a cost of £10,067 (2012-13: £10,067); the net book value of these assets is £5,033  
(2012-13: £7,550).

Included in the cost of computers brought forward are assets with a cost of £25,000 which are under construction; these had previously been depreciated to a net 
book value of £17,000 which has now been reversed in the year.  These assets have now been transferred to their own asset class.    
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22. penSion Fund

Staff in post prior to February 2002 were offered, after one year’s service, membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension 
scheme administered by the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) of which the Gallery, in common with many other charities, is an “Admission body”.  
Following transitional arrangements this scheme was closed to new members on 16 May 2003.  The average number of employees in the scheme in the year was 
1 (2012/3: 1).  The scheme is funded with assets being held by the LPFA trustees.  The contributions to the scheme are determined by a qualified actuary on the 
basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit method.  A formal valuation was completed by the actuary as at 31 March 2013, the data from which has been 
used to project member data forward to 31 March 2016 to give the disclosures below as required under FRS17 “Retirement Benefits”.  

Cash contributions are calculated on a basis determined by the LPFA’s actuarial advisers for the scheme as a whole.  This “ongoing” basis is different to the FRS17 
basis that employers are required to use in reflecting the cost and the funded status (surplus or deficit) of a final salary scheme in their accounts.  The FRS17 
calculations take these contributions into account as increasing the scheme assets and therefore reducing the overall pension liability, but they are otherwise 
ignored under the FRS17 method used to measure the accrued annual costs of the scheme.

Employee contributions are tiered from 5.5% to 7.5% and employer contributions equal 22.1% of salary.  Total salary-based employer contributions to the scheme 
in the period amounted to £18,000 (2012/13: £18,000).  The scheme has been in deficit for some years and, at the request of the scheme Trustees in 2006-7, the 
Gallery began to make additional payments intended to eliminate the past deficit on the scheme (as calculated on an “ongoing” basis, different and less prudent 
from that of FRS17) over a 10 year period.  The additional contribution in the year was £50,000 (2012/13: £50,000).  The additional contribution expected to be 
paid in 2014/15 is £54,000.

If the Gallery were to cease to have any current employee members in this scheme, the Trustees understand that the Gallery would no longer qualify as an 
“Admission Body”.  In that event, the Trustees understand that a final exit contribution would be payable to the LPFA in accordance with the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations if, at that time, the Gallery’s share of the scheme assets at then current market value were to be insufficient to cover its share of the 
scheme’s then current and future obligations.  The amount, if any, of this exit contribution would be calculated at that time on a basis determined by the LPFA 
scheme actuary.  The possibility of such a contribution is taken account of in considering the Gallery’s investment policy.

The pension liability in the balance sheet of £534,000 is a net liability, being the excess of the £1,905,000 discounted value of the scheme’s projected liabilities 
over the £1,371,000 market value of the scheme assets.  In accordance with FRS17, changes in the value of this pension liability are reflected in the net movement 
in funds partly via resources expended (service cost and pension finance charge) and partly via recognised gains and losses (all other changes, including the 
difference between expected and actual returns on the scheme assets and actuarial gains or losses on the liabilities).

The assets in the scheme and the expected rates of return were: 
     2014   2013 
     Long term  Assets at  Long term  Assets at 
     return  31 March  return  31 March 
 
Equities     6.9  727  6.0  929 
LDI/Cashflow matching     3.6  82  n/a  - 
Target return portfolio     6.3  411  4.6  127 
Alternative assets     n/a  -  5.0  191 
Infrastructure     6.5  55  n/a  - 
Commodities     6.3  14  n/a  - 
Property     5.7  41  n/a  - 
Cash     3.4  41  0.5  25 

total     6.4  1,371  5.6  1,272 

Net pension liability of the Gallery: 
     2014   2013 
               £’000            £’000
 
Estimated employer assets     1,371   1,272 
Present value of scheme liabilities     1,904   1,675 

Net pension liability     (533)  (403)

Mortality
The post retirement mortality is based on Club Vita mortality analysis which has then been projected using the medium cohort projection and 
allowing for a minimum rate of improvement of 1%.  Based on these assumptions, the assumed life expectancies from age 65 are:   
      
 
     2014   2013 
     Males Females Males Females
         
 
Current pensioners     22.1 years 25.7 years 20.4 years 24.1 years
Future pensioners     24.4 years 28.0 years 22.4 years 26.0 years 

The key assumptions used by the actuary were: 
      2014   2013 
      % p.a.   % p.a.   
 
Price increases      3.5   3.3 
CPI increases      2.7   2.5 
Salary increases       4.5   4.2 
Pension increases      2.7   2.5 
Discount rate      4.4   4.0  
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Analysis of the amounts charged to resources expended: 
     2014   2013 
               £’000            £’000
 
Current service cost     24    21 
Past service costs     -   -  

total charge     24   21 

Analysis of the pension finance charge: 
     2014   2013 
               £’000            £’000
 
Expected return on employer assets    72   65 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities    (67)  (67) 

Net return     5   (2)

Net revenue cost     19   23

Analysis of actuarial gain: 
     2014   2013 
               £’000            £’000
 
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets   (28)  91 
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities   (151)  - 
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (1)  (159) 

     (180)  (68)

Reconciliation of opening and closing scheme liability: 
     2014   2013 
               £’000            £’000
 
Deficit at beginning of year     (403)  (380)
Current service cost     (24)  (21)
Past service costs     -   - 
Employer contributions     69   68 
Net return on assets     5   (2)
Actuarial gains/(losses)     (180)  (68) 

Deficit at end of year     (533)  (403)

Reconciliation of opening and closing scheme assets:       
      2014   2013 
                £’000            £’000

Opening fair value of Scheme assets     1,272   1,079 
Expected return on Scheme assets      72   65 
Actuarial gains/(losses)      (14)  91 
Contributions by employer      68   68 
Contributions by Scheme participant     6   6 
Estimated benefits paid (net of transfers in and including unfunded)   (33)  (37)

Fair value of scheme assets at end of year     1,371   1,272 

History of experience gains and losses: 
      2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
              £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000           £’000

 

Difference between expected/actual return on assets  (28) 91  (61) 4  159 
Value of assets    1,371  1,272  1,079  1,037  926 
Percentage of assets    (2.0)% 7.2% (5.7)% 0.4% 17.2%
Experience gains/(losses) on liabilities   (151) -  -  377  - 
Present value of liabilities    1,904  1,675  1,459  1,245  1,715 
Percentage of present value of liabilities   (7.9)% -  -  30.3% - 
Actuarial gain/(loss)    (180) (68) (211) 419  (504)
Percentage of present value of liabilities   (9.5)% (4.1)% (14.5)% 33.7% (29.4)%

23. Stakeholder penSion Scheme

The Gallery has designated Standard Life to provide a stakeholder pension to full-time and part-time employees who have completed 3 months’ continuous 
service.  Employees in the scheme must make a contribution of at least £20 per month.  After one year’s continuous service, if they contribute at least 3% of 
salary, they are eligible for an employer’s contribution from the Gallery at the starting rate of 6% of salary.  If an employee opts to pay more, the Gallery increases 
its contribution accordingly up to a maximum contribution from the Gallery of 9% of salary if the employee pays 6%.  

The average number of employees in the scheme in the year was 10 (2012-13: 10). Employer contributions in the year were £22,000 (2012-13: £22,000).
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24. endowment FundS

25. reStricted FundS

  Expendable Catalyst Sackler  Sackler Edith Capital Total
  endowment endowment Director endowment Callam fund
  funds fund fund fund Memorial
  (see below)    Trust
  £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 
 
Donations, grants and sponsorship  2  1,673  -  (1) -  102  1,773 
Investment management  (3) (10) (4) (1) (57) (75)

Net incoming/(outgoing)  (1) 1,673  (10) (5) (1) 45  1,699 
Resources before transfers
Transfers between funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Net incoming/(outgoing)   (1) 1,673  (10) (5) (1) 45  1,699  
Resources before recognised gains/losses
Gain on investments  (2) 5  -  -  -  (3) 2 

Net movement in funds  (3) 1,678  (10) (5) (1) 41  1,700 

balance brought forward  832  304  2,536  1,085  320  14,209  19,286 
 
balance carried forward  829  1,982  2,526  1,080  319  14,251  20,987 

 
The Sackler Director fund represents donations from the Dr Mortimer & Theresa Sackler Foundation for the Sackler Director post.

The Sackler endowment fund is specifically earmarked for the work of The Sackler Centre for Arts Education at the Gallery and contributed towards the cost of a 
post in the Education department.  

The Catalyst endowment fund is the Heritage Lottery Fund/Department for Culture Media and Sports Catalyst: Endowments fund. This relates to an endowment 
fund set up to provide an annual income to support core costs associated with learning at the Gallery.

The Edith Callam Memorial Trust arises from the estate of Edith Margaret Callam who died in October 2005.  The Gallery was entitled to a half share of her 
residuary estate which is to be held in trust with the capital invested to produce an income to be spent on funding the Gallery’s temporary exhibitions.  

The remaining Endowment fund capital represents the capital fund raised towards securing the Gallery’s future. 

  
  Development Education Exhibitions Collection  Prize funds Asset Total 
  fund fund fund fund fund fund
  £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 

Incoming resources
Donations, grants and sponsorship  75  47  158  107  -  -  387 
Investment income  -  31  9  -  -  -  40 
Incoming resources from charitable activities -  86  -  -  -  -  86 

total incoming resources  75  164  167  107  -  -  513 

Resources expended
Charitable activities  147  367  167  83  -  -  764 

total resources expended  147  367  167  83  -  -  764 

Net movement in funds  (72) (203) -  24  -  -  (251)

balance brought forward  3,164  568  32  119  2  27  3,912 

balance carried forward  3,092  365  32  143  2  27  3,661 

The incoming resources for restricted funds represent non-endowment monies given for, and restricted to, specific purposes.  

The Gallery development fund arose initially from an appeal for the development of the Gallery which was completed in 2000.  A new development project was 
started during 2010-11. As at 31 March 2014, £3,013,000 of the fund is represented by the fixed asset Gallery development.  Depreciation is being charged 
against the original fund over the remaining life of the asset, and this part of the fund will then be extinguished.  Additions during 2010-11 and 2011-12 are being 
depreciated over ten years. The remaining £79,000 of the fund is held in cash and provides a reserve towards increased maintenance costs. 

The Education fund represents funds raised for and by the work of the Education department.  Investment income of £31,000 from the Sackler Education 
endowment has been credited to this fund.  

The Exhibition fund represents donations and sponsorship for temporary exhibitions.  The unexpended balance on the fund at the year end arises from previously 
unspent investment income.   

The Collection fund represents funds raised for the conservation of pictures in the collection and their frames,  for research on the collection and its 
documentation, and for the maintenance and restoration of the Gallery buildings and grounds. 

The Lupton fund represents a donation from James & Beatrice Lupton which has been specified as expendable endowment; the Trustees have the power to use 
the funds to meet expenditure for any of the purposes of the Gallery.

The Weston fund represents a donation from The Garfield Weston Foundation which has been specified as expendable endowment; the Trustees have the power 
to use the funds to meet expenditure for any of the purposes of the Gallery. 

The Esmeé Fairbairn fund represents a donation from The Esmeé Fairbairn Foundation which has been specified as expendable endowment; the Trustees have 
the power to use the funds to meet expenditure for any of the purposes of the Gallery. 

expendable endowment funds 
     Lupton Esmeé Weston  Total
     fund Fairbairn fund
      fund
            £’000        £’000        £’000        £’000

Donations, grants and sponsorship     -  1  1  2 
Investment management     -  (1) (2) (3)

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before transfers   -  -  (1) (1)
Transfers between funds     -  -  -  - 

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before recognised gains/losses  -  -  (1) (1)
Gain on investments     -  (1) (1) (2)

Net movement in funds     -  (1) (2) (3)

balance brought forward     157  234  441  832 

balance carried forward     157  233  439  829 
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26. unreStricted FundS

                    Designated funds         General funds  Total
     Other
   Stanley Endowment exhibition Operating Pension
   Scott income funds fund reserve
            £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000

incoming resources
Donations, grants and sponsorship   -  -  -  515  -  515 
Trading income   -  -  -  463  -  463 
Fundraising auction income   -  -  -  -  -  - 
Investment income   5  -  -  530  -  535 
Incoming resources from charitable activities  -  -  -  824  -  824 
 
total incoming resources   5  -  -  2,332  -  2,337 
         
Resources expended
Cost of generating funds   (1) -  -  635  (8) 626 
Charitable activities   -  -  -  1,887  (41) 1,846 
Governance costs   -  -  -  66  (1) 65 
 
total resources expended   (1) -  -  2,588  (50) 2,537 
         
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before transfers 4  -  -  (256) 50  (200)
Transfers between funds   -  -  -  -  -  - 
Net incoming/(outgoing) resources
for year before gains/losses   4  -  -  (256) 50  (203)
Loss on investments   -  -  -  -  (180) (180)
 
Net movement in funds   4  -  -  (256) (130) (383)
balance brought forward   77  313  100  456  (403) 543 

balance carried forward   81  313  100  199  (533) 160 

The designated funds represent funds designated by the Trustees for specific purposes.  

The Stanley Scott fund derives from the bequest of Stanley Scott, who died in 1990.  He bequeathed a large collection of books, etc. to the Gallery.  Some items 
were taken into the collection and the rest were sold at auction.  It was decided to invest the proceeds and to use the income generated for exhibitions.  Income 
arising from the investment of this fund is treated as designated and any associated investment management cost is allocated to this fund.

The Endowment Income fund arises from income generated by the Endowment funds in excess of the target determined by the Trustees and can be used toward 
exhibitions expenditure which is not fully funded by alternative income sources.

The other exhibition funds represent incoming resources which the Trustees have decided should form a reserve towards the cost of future exhibitions, enabling 
contractual commitments to be made before other funding for an exhibition has been secured.  

The Operating fund represents all resources of the Gallery which are neither restricted by the terms of the donation nor designated by the Trustees for specific 
purposes.

The Pension reserve, which is in deficit, represents the estimated liability in respect of the final salary pension scheme to which some members of staff belong.  
The Trustees of the fund require this deficit to be made good over a 10 year period and the Gallery has undertaken to make additional contributions to the fund 
with effect from financial year 2006-7 in order to achieve this.  These payments are charged against the Operating fund.  

27. allocation oF net aSSetS between FundS

28. related party tranSactionS

    Investments Fixed Net Current Long term Total
     Assets Assets Liabilities
           £’000        £’000        £’000        £’000        £’000

Endowment funds    20,181  -  210  -  20,391 
Expendable endowment funds    597  - (1) - 596 
Restricted funds    2  3,013  646  -  3,661 
Designated funds    480  -  14  -  494 
Operating fund    1,017  45  (858) (5) 199 
Pension reserve    -  -  -  (533) (533)
 
    22,277  3,058  11  (538) 24,808 

 The Trustees confirm that the assets held are available and adequate to fulfil the obligations of the charity for the foreseeable future.

During the year Zolfo Cooper LLP donated £12,000 toward the Hockney Printmaker Exhibition. Simon Freakley, the Chairman of the Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Board of Trustees, is Chief Executive Officer of Zolfo Cooper Europe. A further personal donation of £10,000 was made towards the Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Special Exhibitions Fund by Simon and Meg Freakley.

There we no outstanding balances at the year end.

A number of other Trustees have made various donations to the Gallery during the year, either personally or through a trust or other organisation with which 
they are associated. There have been no other material transactions with any related party.
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STrUCTUrE, GoVErNANCE ANd MANAGEMENToBJECTS ANd ACTIVITIES

our purpoSe
Dulwich Picture Gallery was established 
more than 200 years ago because its 
founders believed as many people as 
possible should see great paintings. Today 
we believe the same, because we know 
that art can change lives.

•	 	What	makes	us	world-class	is	our	exceptional	
collection of Old Master paintings

•	 	What	 makes	 us	 unique	 is	 John	 Soane’s	
purpose-built public gallery – the first in 
england – which allows visitors to experience 
those paintings in an intimate, welcoming 
setting.

•	 	What	makes	us	relevant	is	the	way	we	unite	
our past with our present, using innovative 
exhibitions, authoritative scholarship and 
pioneering education programmes to change 
lives for the better.

our goalS
Dulwich Picture Gallery’s mission is to 
achieve international recognition as one 
of the world’s great galleries, through a 
creative blend of excellence and innovative 
programming in all its activities.

•	 	To	 preserve,	 display	 and	 interpret	 both	 the	
collection and Sir John Soane’s famous building, 
for the present and future generations.

•	 	To	engage	people	 in	 the	visual	arts,	 through	
scholarship, exhibition and education

•	 	To	reach	and	serve	as	wide	a	public	as	possible	
by making all our activities accessible, for 
people of all ages and abilities.

•	 	To	 celebrate	 the	 Gallery’s	 unique	 qualities	
through an entrepreneurial, flexible and 
innovative approach in all that we do.

a further scheme was approved by the Charity 
Commissioners in 1995 regulating the Trustees’ 
powers of investment. an additional scheme 
in 1998 gave Trustees the power to invest in a 
subsidiary trading company and to vary certain 
of the clauses in the 1994 scheme.   in September 
2002, January 2005 and January 2006 amendments 
were made under this power by the Trustees in 
special meetings, to remove restrictions on the 
composition of the Board of Trustees. under the 
scheme as amended the Board of Trustees is to 
consist of at least six persons appointed by the 
Trustees at a special meeting or as a separate 
agenda item at an ordinary meeting. One Trustee 
shall be appointed with the agreement of the 
President and Council of the royal academy and 
one with the agreement of the governing bodies of 
Dulwich College, alleyn’s School and James allen’s 
Girls’ School.  in seeking new Trustees, the Board 
analyses the skills and experience of existing 
members and aims to cover identified gaps and 
to achieve an appropriate balance.  Potential 
Trustees meet the nominations Committee and 
Director before being proposed to the full Board.   

On appointment, new Trustees receive a 
package of material including details of the 
Charity’s constitution, copies of recent accounts 
and minutes of recent Board meetings. They 
are then invited to an induction session at the 
Gallery, typically lasting for half a day, at which 
they are able to meet the staff and to spend 
time with the Director and Heads of Department 
to gain an understanding of the Gallery’s  
operations.  Further training for Trustees is 
arranged according to need.  

The Trustees have approved a scheme of 
delegations so that it is clear which decisions are 
reserved to the Board and which are delegated to 
the Director and staff.  in essence, the Board of 
Trustees is responsible for setting policy and the 
Director and staff for implementation.  among 
matters reserved to the Trustees are appointment 
of senior staff, approval of the Gallery’s budget and 
financial statements, approval of exhibitions policy 
and individual loans from the collection, and 
approval of any significant changes in operations. 

SubSidiary company
in July 2003 the Charity Commission approved 

a further scheme extending the Trustees’ powers 
to conduct trading activity.  nevertheless, because 
of the scale of this activity it was decided to transfer 
responsibility for it to Dulwich Picture Gallery 
enterprises limited (DPGe).   DPGe is a company 
limited by shares, with 100% of the share capital 
being held by two representative Trustees on behalf 
of the Trustees of Dulwich Picture Gallery.  The 
Board of Directors of DPGe includes three external 
members as well as two Gallery Trustees and two 
members of staff.  DPGe has run the Gallery shop 
since 1 June 2004.  From 1 april 2005 it also became 
responsible for the commercial hire of Gallery 
space.  The company is financed by a loan from the 
Gallery which is secured by a floating charge over 
the company’s assets.  The loan is interest bearing 
and during 2011-12 the Trustees of Dulwich Picture 
Gallery reviewed the loan agreement and formally 
agreed to extend the loan on a rolling two year 
basis; this was renewed again in May 2014. 49% of 
the initial loan has been repaid to date.

Statement on public beneFit
The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s 
general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Gallery’s aims and objectives and in planning 
future activities.

the preSent conStitution oF dulwich picture gallery dates from 
1994 when the Charity Commissioners approved a scheme of regulation under 
the Charities Act 1993.  Under this scheme the object of the Charity is “to further 
the education of the public in the appreciation of the fine arts by preserving and 
maintaining the [Gallery] building and the collection belonging thereto as an 
independent gallery for the exhibition of works of fine art to the public and for 
charitable educational purposes connected therewith”.  
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STATEMENT oF TrUSTEES’ rESPoNSIBILITIES

Charity law requires the Trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year in 
accordance with united Kingdom Generally 
accepted accounting Practice (united Kingdom 
accounting Standards and applicable law).  under 
charity law the Trustees must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the group and charity and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources, including 
the income and expenditure, of the group for that 
period. 

in preparing these financial statements, the 
Trustees are required to:
•	 select	 suitable	 accounting	 policies	 and	 then	
apply them consistently;
•	 make	 judgements	and	accounting	estimates	
that are reasonable and prudent;
•	 state	 whether	 applicable	 UK	 Accounting	
Standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in 
the financial statements; 
•	 prepare	 the	 financial	 statements	 on	 the	
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the charity will continue in 
business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping 
adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the charity’s transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charity and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Charities act 2011.  They are 

also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

Financial statements are published on the 
charity’s website in accordance with legislation 
in the united Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements, which 
may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
The maintenance and integrity of the charity’s 
website is the responsibility of the trustees.  
The trustees’ responsibility also extends to the 
ongoing integrity of the financial statements 
contained therein.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Trustees have responsibility for ensuring 
effective risk management processes are in place 
across the charity.  

The major risks to the charity’s business, 
finances and reputation, as identified by the 
Trustees, have been reviewed and systems have 
been put in place to mitigate those risks.  a full 
risk register has been compiled and is held at the 
Gallery’s offices.  This is reviewed by the Trustees 
on an annual basis.

This report of the Board of Trustees of Dulwich 
Picture Gallery was approved at its meeting on 23 
July 2014 and signed on their behalf by:

Simon Freakley    
Chair     

radhika radhakrishnan
Chair, Finance and Audit Committee

This report is made solely to the charity’s trustees, 
as a body, in accordance with the Charities act 
2011.  Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the charity’s trustees those 
matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
charity and the charity’s trustees as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

RESpEcTIvE RESpoNSIbIlITIES  
of TRuSTEES ANd AudIToR
as explained more fully in the Statement of 
Trustees’ responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements which give a true and fair view.

we have been appointed as auditor under 
section 144 of the Charities act 2011 and report in 
accordance with regulations made under section 
154 of that act.  Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and international 
Standards on auditing (uK and ireland).  Those 
standards require us to comply with the Financial 
reporting Council’s (FrC’s) ethical Standards for 
auditors.

ScopE of ThE AudIT of  
ThE fINANcIAl STATEMENTS
a description of the scope of an audit of financial 
statements is provided on the FrC’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

opINIoN oN fINANcIAl STATEMENTS
in our opinion the financial statements:
•	 give	 a	 true	 and	 fair	 view	 of	 the	 state	 of	 the	
charity’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, 
for the year then ended;
•	 have	 been	 properly	 prepared	 in	 accordance	
with united Kingdom Generally accepted 
accounting Practice; and
•	 have	 been	 prepared	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	
requirements of the Charities act 2011.

MATTERS oN whIch wE ARE  
REquIREd To REpoRT by ExcEpTIoN
we have nothing to report in respect of the 
following matters where the Charities act 2011 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•	 the	information	given	in	the	Trustees’	Annual	
report is inconsistent in any material respect 
with the financial statements; or
•	 sufficient	 accounting	 records	 have	 not	 been	
kept; or
•	 the	financial	statements	are	not	in	agreement	
with the accounting records and returns; or
•	 we	have	not	received	all	the	information	and	
explanations we require for our audit.

bdo llp
Statutory auditor
norwich
united Kingdom
27 August 2014 

BDO LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of 
section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered 
in England and Wales (with registered number 
OC305127)

the truSteeS are reSponSible For preparing the Trustees’ annual report and 
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

we have audited the Financial StatementS  of Dulwich Picture Gallery for 
the year ended 31 March 2014 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the 
Balance Sheet and the related notes.  The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

INdEPENdENT AUdITor’S rEPorT
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LoANS FroM ThE PErMANENT CoLLECTIoN IMMUNITy FroM SEIZUrE rEPorT 2013/14

the Following loanS From  
the permanent collection were 
approved by truSteeS and took  
place during 2013/14 

cARlo fRANcESco NuvoloNE, cREATIoN  
of EvE (dpG235) 
exhibition: reciprocal loan 
Buscot Park, Oxfordshire
8 November 2011– 12 May 2013

RAphAEl, SAINT ANThoNy of pAduA 
(dpG241) ANd SAINT fRANcIS of ASSISI 
(dpG243)
exhibition: raphael
national Museum of western art, Tokyo
2 March 2013 – 2 June 2013

JohN RIlEy, wIllIAM chIffINch (dpG568)
exhibition: Secrets of the royal Bedchamber
Hampton Court Palace, Surrey
27 March 2013 – 3 November 2013

GERRIT dou, A woMAN plAyING  
A clAvIchoRd (dpG56)
exhibition: vermeer and Music: The art of love 
and leisure
national Gallery, london
26 June 2013 – 8 September 2013

bRITISh School JoAN AllEyN (dpG444) ANd 
bRITISh School SIR wIllIAM lovElAcE 
(dpG372) 
exhibition: elizabeth i and her People
national Portrait Gallery, london
10 October 2013 – 5 January 2014

GIovANNI ANToNIo cANAl, cAllEd 
cANAlETTo, ThE bucINToRo AT ThE  
Molo oN AScENSIoN dAy (dpG599) 
exhibition: The Pageant of venice: art and Music 
in the Golden age of the Serenissima
The Montreal Museum of Fine arts, Montreal
12 October 2013 – 19 January 2014
Portland art Museum, Oregon
15 February 2014 – 11 May 2014 

GuIdo RENI, SAINT SEbASTIAN (dpG268)
exhibition: Caravaggio to Canaletto: The Glory  
of italian Baroque and rococo Painting 
Szépművészeti Múzeum, Budapest
26 October 2013 – 16 February 2014 

JEAN-ANToINE wATTEAu, lES plAISIRS  
du bAl (dpG156) ANd 
attributed to Jean-Baptiste Pater, Fête Champêtre 
(DPG167)
exhibition: From watteau to Fragonard... les 
fêtes galantes
The Musée Jacquemart-andré, Paris
14 March 2014 – 21 July  2014 

clAudE-JoSEph vERNET, ITAlIAN 
lANdScApE (dpG 328) 
exhibition: richard wilson and the 
Transformation of european landscape Painting
Yale Centre for British art, new Haven
6 March 2014 – 1 June 2014 

wIllIAM hoGARTh, poRTRAIT of A MAN 
(dpG580), ThoMAS GAINSboRouGh, A 
couplE IN A lANdScApE (dpG588) ANd 
RIchARd wIlSoN, TIvolI, ThE cAScATEllE 
ANd ThE ‘vIllA of MAEcENAS’ (dpG171)
exhibition: Hogarth, reynolds, Turner: British 
Painting and the rise of Modernity
The Fondazione roma arte-Musei, rome
15 April 2014 – 20 July 2014

in april 2009, the Secretary oF 
State For culture, media and 
Sport granted Dulwich Picture Gallery 
approved status under Part 6 of the 
Tribunals Courts and Enforcement Act 
2007 allowing us – where necessary – to 
apply for protection for specific loans to 
exhibitions under the provisions of the Act.

Dulwich Picture Gallery has continued to  
apply the necessary processes developed 
following our approved status and in accordance 
with our Due Diligence Policy. This involves 
compiling obtainable provenance information  
for each loan, researching and requesting  
further information, running checks via art  
loss databases, carefully considering any 
remaining gaps in provenance and evaluating 
risk of third party claim.   

Details of the works requiring immunity from 
seizure together with results of the relevant 
provenance research are published on Dulwich 
Picture Gallery’s website at least four weeks 
before the objects arrive in the uK. 

During the financial year 2013-14 two exhibitions 
were shown at Dulwich Picture Gallery containing 
works for which immunity from seizure was 
granted, covering a total of 25 works.  During this 
period no enquiries or claims were received under 
Section 7 of the Protection of Cultural Objects on 
loan (Publications and Provision of information) 
regulations 2008. 

exhibitionS including  
protected workS: 

MuRIllo ANd JuSTINo dE NEvE:  
ThE ART of fRIENdShIp
6 February – 19 May 2013 
3 oils
2 objects  
 
NASh, NEvINSoN, SpENcER, GERTlER, 
cARRINGToN, boMbERG: A cRISIS of 
bRIllIANcE, 1908 – 1922
12 June – 22 September 2013 
1 oil 

AN AMERIcAN IN loNdoN:  
whISTlER ANd ThE ThAMES
16 October 2013 – 12 January 2014
2 oils
4 works on paper 
 
hocKNEy, pRINTMAKER
5 February 2014 – 11 May 2014
13 works on paper
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The 29th May 1961 Charity
The art Fund
The association of independent Museums
richard aylmer
Jean-luc Baroni
nicholas Berwin
Bond Dickinson llP
Peter and Sally Cadbury
Charterhouse in Southwark
Michael and angela Cronk
The estate of Mrs anne Crosthwait
The Derek Hill Foundation
The elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
embassy of Spain
The Foyle Foundation
Timothy Franey Charitable Foundation
The Golden Bottle Charitable Trust
lady Green
The Hamish Parker Charitable Trust
Heritage lottery Fund /Department for Culture, 
Media & Sport Catalyst: endowments Fund
Johnny and Sarah van Haeften
K2 intelligence
linbury Trust
The loveday Charitable Trust
John lucas

The Mactaggart Third Fund
The arthur and Holly Magill Foundation 
Michael Marks Charitable Trust
The Martineau Family Trust
The Matthiesen Foundation
Marc and Fiona Meyohas
nicholas and Pel Mountain
national association of Decorative and Fine 
arts Societies
rathbone investment Management
rBC wealth Management
Dennis and lesley robins
The Sackler Trust
Scala arts & Heritage Publishing ltd.
Sir Siegmund warburg’s voluntary 
Settlement
Sims reed Gallery
The Bernard Sunley Charitable Foundation
The Topinambour Trust
Penny Treadwell
Trusthouse Charitable Foundation
eugenie Turton CB
Michael and ruth west
George and Patti white
The Zolfo Cooper Foundation
And those who wish to remain anonymous

deSenFanS circle memberS
Julian agnew
lady alexander of weedon
Patrick Mears and rachel anderson
Mark and Janie andrews
noël and Caroline annesley
Paul and Janet Barry
nicholas and Debbie Barton
Tom and ingrid Beazley
Michael and Maria Binnion
Dominic and nancy Casserley
Mark and Mary Corby
Charles and Ginny Covell
Michael and angela Cronk
Dónall Curtin and anne O’Donoghue
ludovic and Camilla de walden
Polly Devlin OBe
robert and Sally elliott
Mark and Sarah evans
Simon and Meg Freakley
lady Getty
Charlotte and Charles Harman
Bernard Hunter and alberto Badino
Hugh Hudson-Davies
lord and lady Kakkar
Dr Philip Kay and alexandra Jackson Kay
James and urszula King
James and Clare Kirkman
Jamie and Julia Korner
Herbert and Sybil Kretzmer
James and Béatrice lupton
nicholas and lindsay Merriman
Dr Kevin and Jackie Mountain
rosaleen Mulji
Christopher and Sophie north
richard and amicia Oldfield
ian and anne Park
Michael and ivetta rabinovich
His Honour Michael rich QC
Philip and Sarah richards
Sir David and lady richards
Yvonne riley
Dame Theresa Sackler DBe
victoria Sharp
robert and rebecca Stirling
Patrick and Sue Sumner

robert and Simone Suss
robert and Patricia Swannell
Denis and Susie Tinsley
Penny Treadwell
wilf and annie weeks
Mary weston CBe
Professor Peter G whiteman QC 
And others that wish to remain anonymous

deSenFanS circle honorary 
memberS
Peter and Sally Cadbury
arturo and Holly Melosi
Hamish Parker
lesley and Dennis robins
lord and lady Sainsbury of Preston Candover
The Hon laura weinstock
And others that wish to remain anonymous

1811 club memberS
Jill and Sandy alexander
leslie and Desna allan
valerie austin
Professor alan and Sarah Bird
lady Black
ian and Fumiyo Boulton
Tim Bowley
Francis Carnwath CBe and Caroline wiseman
raymond and ruth Cousins
Pat a Cox
andrew Cullen
Dr Tyrrell and Siân evans
John and Felicity Fairbairn
Marshall Field CBe
nigel and Caroline Fletcher
Brian and Penny Foord
Derek and Margaret Fordham
Peter and rita Frost
Hilary Gaster
Surojit and Dr Susan Ghosh
Marion Gibbs CBe
Oliver and Sue Gillie
Bruce and ursula Gregory
Meg and Jim Hammer
Sir David* and lady Hancock
Caroline Hansberry

Helen Grace Hardy and Marion Cayless
Mary Haynes
Bill and Janet Higman
Jean Howell
James Hughes-Hallett CMG
Christopher and Charlotte King
Martin and wendy Kramer
Dr John lazar and Susan rosenberg lazar
lord and lady lester of Herne Hill
Mark and liza loveday
Jill Manuel
Judy Marshall
Philip McHugh and Byrna west
nigel and annal Mcnair Scott
David and Margaret Morris-Marsham
Sheila O’reilly and Peter McKay
Terence O’Sullivan and Dr adrianne reveley
Colin Pearson
nicholas and Dr Cecilia Powell
Jeremy and Jackie Prescott
richard and Candida raeburn
Charles and Celia randell
ian rankine
Dr Yvonneke roe
andrew and ann rutherford
william and ruth Saunders
Mark and Sue Smith
Chris and nina Smith
Patrick and Merrill Spencer
Katharine St. John-Brooks and vivian 
Bazalgette
David and Desrae Trace
David and Joy Tucker
eugenie Turton CB
ellen-Grethe vines
willis and Gay walker
Graham and Margaret walsh
John and Judith ward
Thomas and Brenda wells
David wells
Simon white and Dr Frances woisin
Chris and Diana wilkinson
Martin wyld CBe
* Denotes donor has sadly passed away

oUr doNorS PATroNS oF dULwICh PICTUrE GALLEry

donorS and SupporterS who have given £1,000 and above in 2013/14
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1811 club honorary memberS
Phillip e Cox
Peter and win ellis
robert and Diana Gore
ann Thornton
John and anne vadgama

canadian FriendS oF dulwich 
picture gallery
The Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery is 
a designated Charitable Organisation issued under 
the Canadian Corporations Act (Charity Number: 
81828 9860 RR0001)

major Supporter
rupert Duchesne and Holly Coll Black
Kent Macintyre and Janine laBossiere
Mclean Foundation

directorS circle
Michael audain OC OBC llD and Yoshiko 
Karasawa
Michael and Sonja Koerner C.M.
Fred and Beverly Schaeffer
Dasha Shenkman

curatorS circle
Martha Durdin and Tony Caldwell
alison Fisher
David and Patsy Heffel
Joan F. ivory
Sandy Sellers and Katharine Smithrim
David P. Silcox and linda intaschi
Sandra Simpson
Michael and renae Tims

Supporter
Pamela Campbell
edward Johnson

american FriendS oF dulwich 
picture gallery
The American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
is a non-profit organisation exempt from federal 
income tax under Section 501(c)(3)  
[EIN: 98-0391841]
† We would like to thank the American Friends of 
Dulwich Picture Gallery for their generosity and 
support. The grants from the American Friends of 
Dulwich Picture Gallery Inc. in 2013-14 were made 
possible through the generosity of The Arthur 
and Holly Magill Foundation and The Ronus 
Foundation.

curatorS circle
James and Debby Brice 
Blair and Carol Brown
Bahman and roya irvani
Gregory Miller and Michael wiener
Mortimer Sackler, Jr. and Jacqueline Sackler
victoria Sharp
George and Patti white

Supporter
Dr John and Jane Mather

the board oF the FriendS oF 
dulwich picture gallery
Jenny Sweeney (Chair)
Pat Cox (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Frost (Treasurer)
Jenny ringo
Jane reid
rona Black
liz Buchanan
rita Frost
lata Mcwatt
Judy Mewburn
Gail Mitchell
Pia Helena Ormerod
Jane Peecock
Tamara Tempera
Steve viney

the board oF the american FriendS 
oF dulwich picture gallery
Jeremy Kroll (President)
Sophie north
ian a C Dejardin (Vice President)
Bahman irvani
Paula Dimond (Treasurer until January 2014)
Holly Melosi
Harvey Marcus (Secretary)
lily Harriss (until March 2014)
Monique Quesada
Susie Tinsley
Gregory r Miller
nancy Casserley
Philip McHugh

the board oF the canadian FriendS 
oF dulwich picture gallery
David Silcox (Chairman)  
ian a C Dejardin  
Paula Dimond (Treasurer until January 2014)  
Cheryl Menges (Assistant Treasurer until 
November 2013)  
Harvey Marcus (Secretary)  
rupert Duchesne  
Gregory Kane
Phillip Crawley  
ash Prakash  
Michael Koerner  
ashley Prime  
Martha Durdin  
Mark Fell  
lily Harriss (until March 2014)

the campaign cabinet
Simon Freakley (Chairman)  
Dame Theresa Sackler DBe   
Joanna lumley OBe (Honorary Patron)  
Johnny van Haeften  
Jenny Sweeney  
Mary reilly  
victoria Sharp
Philip richards  
Jeremy Kroll  
David Silcox  
ian a C Dejardin  
lily Harriss (until March 2014)  
James Thompson  
Harvey Marcus (Secretary)  

education adviSory board
robert Gore (Chairman)  
Béatrice lupton  
Christina Gascoigne  
Dalya alberge  
Dame Theresa Sackler DBe  
Humphrey Ocean
lady normington  
rt Hon nicholas wallop  
Yvonne riley  
ian a C Dejardin  
Gillian wolfe CBe

PATroNS oF dULwICh PICTUrE GALLEry (CoNT.)
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oUr LENdErS 

The Designation scheme identifies the pre-
eminent collections of national and international 
importance held in england’s non-national 
museums, libraries and archives, based on their 
quality and significance.

murillo lenderS 
Museo Del Prado, Madrid
Fundacion Focus abengoa, Seville
Museo Del Prado, Madrid
Musée Du louvre, Paris
The Faringdon Collection Trust, Buscot Park
victoria and albert Museum, london
Justiniano 10 anticuarios, Madrid
national Gallery Of ireland, Dublin
Szépmüvészeti Muzeum, Budapest
Seville Cathedral, Seville
national Galleries Of Scotland, edinburgh
The Museum Of Fine arts, Houston
The national Gallery, london
and those who wish to remain anonymous

murillo SupporterS
The arthur and Holly Magill Foundation 
america Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
The Murillo Scholars’ Day was organised through 
the arTeS, and funded by the Spanish Ministry 
for Cultural affairs in london. The exhibition 
drew 25,409 visitors. 

murillo tour partnerS /  
oFFicial credit line: 
This touring exhibition was exhibition was 
organised by the Museo nacional del Prado, the 
Fundación Focus-abengoa and Dulwich Picture 
Gallery. 

criSiS oF brilliance lenderS
The ashmolean Museum, Oxford
Ben uri, The london Jewish Museum of art
Birmingham Museums and art Gallery
British Council Collection
The British Museum, london
Trustees of the Cecil Higgins art Gallery, Bedford
The Trustees of the Cooper Gallery, Barnsley
Fitzwilliam Museum, Cambridge
Government art Collection
leeds Museums and Galleries (leeds art Gallery)
Manchester City Galleries
national Gallery of Canada, Ottawa.
The national Portrait Gallery, london
new walk Museum and art Gallery, leicester
Pallant House Gallery, Chichester
The Potteries Museum & art Gallery
edgar astaire Collection, c/o Piano nobile, robert 
Travers works of art ltd
russell-Cotes art Gallery & Museum, 
Bournemouth
Southampton City art Gallery
Stanley Spencer Gallery
Tate
Tate archive 
uCl art Museum, university College london
victoria and albert Museum
williamson art Gallery & Museum, Birkenhead; 
wirral Museums Service
Collection robyn and Mitchel Martin-weber, 
Sydney, australia
Barclays 
Tullie House Museum & art Gallery Trust
Museums Sheffield
arts Council Collection, Southbank Centre, 
london
luke Gertler Collection
And those who wish to remain anonymous

criSiS oF brilliance SupporterS
The elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
Modern British art Supporters’ Group
Dasha Shenkman
Timothy Franey Charitable Foundation
Daniel Katz limited
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
The Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Farrow and Ball 
Media Partner: art of england
And those who wish to remain anonymous

whiStler lenderS
The art institute of Chicago
addison Gallery of american art, Phillips 
academy, andover, Massachusetts
British Museum, london
Trustees of the Cecil Higgins art Gallery, Bedford
Colby College Museum of art, The lunder 
Collection
Dublin City Gallery The Hugh lane
The Hunterian, university of Glasgow
The Metropolitan Museum of art
Musée d’Orsay
Museum of Fine arts, Boston
national Gallery of art, washington
Sterling and Francine Clark art institute
Tate
university of Michigan Museum of art
victoria and albert Museum
leighton House Museum, royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea
lent by Glasgow life (Glasgow Museums) on 
behalf of Glasgow City Council
The Hunterian, university of Glasgow

whiStler tour partnerS / oFFicial 
credit line: 
The exhibition was organised by Dulwich Picture 
Gallery, the addison Gallery of american art, 
and the Freer Gallery of art / arthur M. Sackler 
Gallery, Smithsonian institution. 

Dulwich Picture Gallery:  October 16, 2013 – 
January 12, 2014
addison Gallery of american art: February 1, 

2014 – april 13, 2014  
Freer Gallery of art / arthur M. Sackler Gallery: 
May 3, 2014 – august 17, 2014
whiStler SponSorS 
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
The american Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Michael Marks Charitable Trust 
Farrow and Ball 
american art Supporters’ Group 
K2 intelligence 
rathbone investment Management
And those who wish to remain anonymous

hockney 
The Fine art Society
J. Kasmin
Stephen Stuart-Smith, enitharmon editions ltd.
Marco livingstone
national Gallery of art, washington
national Gallery of australia, Canberra
Salts Mill, Saltaire
The David Hockney Foundation
Peter and emma Jackson
antony Barton Private Collection
Private Collections, courtesy Sims reed 
Private Collection, courtesy alan Cristea Gallery
Tate
Bradford Museums and Galleries
rumi verjee
Jon aisbitt
Maurice Payne
Marlene Dalton
The Johanna and leslie Garfield Collection
John lownsbrough

hockney SponSorS
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery
The elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
Zolfo Cooper
Sims reed Gallery

hockney tour
The exhibition ‘Hockney, Printmaker’ was 
organised by Dulwich Picture Gallery, touring  
to The Bowes Museum. 

our temporary exhibitionS programme is made possible by the provision 
of insurance through the Government Indemnity Scheme. Dulwich Picture Gallery 
would like to thank HM Government for providing Government Indemnity and the 
Department for Culture, Media and Sport and Arts Council England for arranging the 
Indemnity. 



64 65

a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 3 – 1 4  a p p e n d i x a n n u a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 3 – 1 4  a p p e n d i x

dULwICh PICTUrE GALLEry STAFF 

StaFF in poSt during the year:

director
The Sackler Director ian a C Dejardin
   
Meriel abraham 
Javier adalma 
Madeleine adeane 
alex adie
luke alder
wladimir alteriac-witowsky 
Simon Balcon
Kim Balukiewicz
Miranda Baxter 
rob Baxter 
louisa Bee 
Molly Behagg 
Kathleen Bice
Katherine Brennan
lewis Brennan 
Xavier Bray
Gino Brignoli 
Paddy Butler 
Gareth Cadwallader
Oliver Campbell 
Oli Campbell
Gigi Capone 
Francesca Centioni 
e mily Christou
roz Clapham
louise Conaghan
Cailean Couldridge 
Sarah Creed 
Paula Dimond 

Sandy Dwelly 
Stevie edge-McKee 
rebecca england
George eynaud 
rebecca Farmar 
lucy Findley 
lizbeth Frampton
Matteo Fuzzi 
Jessica Geary 
Manuel Godhino 
Diane Hamilton 
lily Harriss 
liz Herring
Jean Hill
Fraser Hollingworth 
alex Horsley
eriko Horsley 
Tara idnani 
Betty Jaresova 
Hugh John 
Poppy Jones-Pierpoint
andrew Kerr 
Sonia Kiourtzidis 
Stuart leech
nadine loach
andrew Macdonald 
ellie Manwell
Harvey Marcus
Kathryn McCandless 

noreen Mcguire
lettie McKie
Dana Mokaddem 
Katherine Moulds 
James Murly-Gotto
Gemma nelson 
Sorcha ni lideadha
ian noble
Chris riggio 
nicole rogers 
Colleen Selwyn 
Tom Sheriff
Clare Simpson
Heidi Sincuba 
Claire Smith 
John Smith
louise Smith
andrea Szeplaki 
James Thompson
Olivia urquhart
ruth vaughan
Hettie ward
Jai watson
Oliver webster 
Michelle weiner
Gillian wolfe 
lucy wood 

the Sackler centre For artS education 
The Gallery’s award-winning education Department runs a programme of courses and activities 
in the Sackler Centre for arts education at the Gallery, and at other sites throughout south london.  
as well as the permanent staff listed above, the following artists, specialists, project co-ordinators, 
assistants and volunteers worked with the education Department:

project coordinatorS
Mary Brodrick
rosie Cooper

Gareth lloyd
nicki Hatton

effie Phillips
Jodie Sadler

ali Benton
alice Cook
amy ruffle 
anna Bonavia
anne Collins
annie ricketts
antonia edgerton
antony ward
Beatrice Braude
Betty ratzin
Carla Pellegrinelli
Carol Cooper
Carol Craig
Carolina Fernandez 
Caroline van Den Bergh 
Catherine rawlinson
Charlotte George
Chrystyan Okuwa
David lipscomb
David windle
Desmond Churcher
Dhruv Bhatnagar
Diana Crewes
Diana Fyfe
Diana Heppenstall
effie Phillips 
eileen wilson
elizabeth Shuck
elsie Phipps 
erik nevin
eugene ankomah
eva Helena Monson
Fiona lawson
Freda woodcock
Gill Hancock
Gulnar Cepoglu
Hazel Barrett 

Hannah Belcher
Helen Turner 
Helene latey
Hilary Gaster
Hilary rosser
ingrid Beazley
iris Jenkins
Jack Stimpson
Jackie Barker
Jacqueline whitaker
Jane Macdonald
Jane Simpkiss 
John O’Donnell
Jojo Mullen
Judy Mewburn
Julie Green
Kathryn Suarez
Katya Hills
Kirsty Gould
Kym Jacobson
lady Gill Hancock
lelia Packer
leonie irvine
linda Horsfield
lise Fowle 
liz Day
lizzie watson 
lucy Davies
Maddalena Sampson 
Manuela Kerr-Smiley
Marinella Mezzanotte
Mariska Beekenkamp
Martina nalesso
Mary Poole-wilson
Mike Sterling 
Millie Stoney
Mireille ellington

Monica nappo
natalia Majeska
nicki Hatton 
nicky villeneau
Olivia willers
Oonagh van Der Borgh
Pat Drew
Patricia Camerlynck
Paul Maina 
Penny Treadwell
Philippa Owen
rachel lloyd
rebecca Olajide
richard Moon
rosemary lacovara 
rosemary Dawson
Sally elliot 
Sarah Ciacci
Shauna aide O’Brian 
Sheila reynolds 
Shirley lumsden
Stef Teichman
Steph robertson
Stephanie Conway 
Susan Cookson
Susan King
Susan wood, Dr.
Thomas Sheriff
ursula Collingwood
val watkins
victoria Henderson-Cleland
victoria Tokarski
virginia Tuck
wendy Hildreth
Yolanta Dolewska 
Yumiko inagaki
Zoe Simon

teacherS, guideS, modelS and volunteerS 
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adrian wood – Photographer
Ben Senior
Ben Street
Bisakha Sarker
Bo Chapman
Bridget Bailey
Carole waller
Caroline nunan
Carlotta Finch
Cheryl Moskowitz – Poet 
Davina Drummond – Artist
Debbie Guneratne
Deborah andrews
erica Parrett
Felicity Montaigu
George Moustakas 
Hannah Carding
Jason Singh – Vocalist

Jo lewis – Artist
Joanna van der Meer
Joanna veevers
Juliette losq – Artist
Karen vost
Kate langrish-Smith
Katherine elizabeth
Kenneth wolfe, Dr.
linda litchfield
liz Butler
liz Charsley-Jory
lois Strover
luke Jones
Mik Brown
nicola Dunn
Pat Drew 
Paul Cree – Word Artist
Peter astwood

Peter Brown
rebecca allen
rebecca Palmer
ruth Dupre
Sal idriss – Photographer
Sally Cutler
Sara lee
Sarah wetherall 
Susan wilson
Stewart Ganley
Tanya Kaprielian
valerie McBride
valerie woodgate
victoria Browne
william riding
Zoe Flynn
 

The Gallery is also grateful to St Barnabas Parish Hall for providing a venue where visiting schools 
have lunch, South London Scout Centre where Public Courses meet and to Bartleys Flowers for their 
generous sponsorship over the past year.

artiStS and Subject SpecialiStS – all programme StrandS
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rEFErENCE ANd AdMINISTrATIVE dETAILS

patron
 The rt Hon the lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

chairman
Simon Freakley

director (the Sackler director)
ian aC Dejardin

board oF truSteeS
Simon Freakley, Chairman
Mark andrews
Sarah Crompton
Colleen Harris MvO, MiCG
nichola Johnson 
radhika radhakrishnan 
Dame Theresa Sackler DBe (until May 2013)
Joseph Spence 
eugenie Turton CB   
Johnny van Haeften 
Martin wyld CBe 

Finance and audit committee
radhika radhakrishnan (Chairman)
ian a C Dejardin  (ex-officio)
Simon Freakley
Paula Dimond (until January 2014) (ex-officio)
Crispin Southgate (Co-opted)
andrew Macdonald (from March 2014) (ex-officio)

dulwich picture gallery enterpriSeS limited:  
board oF directorS
eugenie Turton CB (Chair)
ian a C Dejardin (ex-officio)
James Close OBe
Paula Dimond (Company Secretary until January 2014)
Maria walsh (Company Secretary from May 2014) 
Kerry Foster
andrew Macdonald (from May 2014)
Mark andrews (from May 2014)

proFeSSional ServiceS and adviSorS
Painting conservators  Sophia Plender, nicole ryder

Frame conservator Thomas Proctor

auditors and Tax advisors  BDO llP, Cedar House, 105 Carrow road, 
norwich, nr1 1HP

lPFa actuary  Barnett waddingham llP, Cheapside House, 
138 Cheapside, london eC2v 6Bw

Solicitors  Charles russell llP, 5 Fleet Place, london 
eC4M 7rD

investment Managers  rathbone Brothers investment Managers PlC, 
1 Curzon Place, london w1J 5FB

Bankers  Barclays Bank PlC, 223/229 rye lane,  
london Se15 4TY

   Bank of Scotland, Pentland House,  
8 lochside avenue, edinburgh eH 12 9DJ

registered Charity number  1040942

contact detailS

For more information please contact the Development Office
on 020 8299 8728 or development@dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk
 
Dulwich Picture Gallery
Gallery road
london
Se21 7aD
 
dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk
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the gallery iS an independent charitable truSt  
Charity number: 1040942

patron
The rt Hon the lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

chairman
Simon Freakley

director (the Sackler director)
ian aC Dejardin

our truSteeS:
Simon Freakley Chairman
Mark andrews
Sarah Crompton
Colleen Harris MvO, MiCG
nichola Johnson
radhika radhakrishnan
Dame Theresa Sackler DBe (until May 2013)
Joseph Spence
eugenie Turton CB,
Johnny van Haeften
Martin wyld CBe

For more information please contact the development office  
on 020 8299 8728 or development@dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk A Gallery project  

with the brit school



Gallery Road, dulwich village
london SE21 7Ad

Telephone 020 8693 5254 
Textphone 020 8693 4786
Fax 020 8299 8700

dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk


